
 
 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Date: Thursday, 29 September 2011 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 2 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Andrew Mossop 
Tel: 0151 691 8501 
e-mail: andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July, 2011. 

 
3. SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS MADE UNDER MEMBERS' CODE OF 

CONDUCT (Pages 9 - 46) 
 
4. MYSTERY SHOPPING (Pages 47 - 50) 
 
5. LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN - ANNUAL LETTER AND 

CURRENT PERFORMANCE (Pages 51 - 64) 
 
6. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



�����������	

������
�

��������	�
����
����
�

��������� � �����������������������
�
� ������������ �����������

 
�!�"����
#�$�����
!�%�&�����
�

'�%�(������

�)������
%� �������
�

!�*������ ������������ ��#����������+��*������,�-����������
!�����������+��*������,��� ���������
�

+���*�������
���&����

� .���/��������
�0���1�������
�

��
�

-*�������� +���*�������
���&����

-��2�3�������
�

)������$�������

�
�� 
�

������	���	���	�����������������	���	������������

�
�����������!�%�&����������������*������������*��4��������������������+����3�5�6��������
�������7�%�"��(��,����������)������������*��������������3�5�8���,������&��"�������,�
����&����������,�������&4������,��������*�����5��)�����,��������������(������������������
(�������������������5�
�


� 
��������
�
���	������
�
���������
�������������������� ��������������������!"����#$�%����&'�#())�*��
+����&��"������+�&&�+��&�+�&",�
�

9� ����	
�������
��-������������.	���#()(/#())��
�
:���!���������,�;�������*�������������-������%�*����
���<
�������*��,�����������
�������� (���� ��������� ,���&����� (����� *��"����� ��� ��������� �,� ��������� �����"���
�"��� ����*��������-*����
���� ���9��������
���5� +�������������� �����������������&���
����� �,� ���� ����������� ,����� ��� ��������� ����� ���� ,���&���� (��� ��������� ����
���*������ ��� ������������5�;���&����(���*��������� ��������� �������� �������������
%����������*� ����������� ��%��� )������ ���������� �� ��*������ �**���������
�%��*����� (��� ����� ��� ��**���� ���� ��������� ���������� ���*������� *�������� ���� ����
��*���� ��,������ ����� ����� ��*�������� ���� �� ����������� ��1���������� ��� ��������
��������*��������������������*��������������(����������������������5���������������
)�������������&����������������������������2*����������������(������������������
���*����� ���� ��������� ��� �� ������� ��*��"������ ��� ���� �**������ ��� ���������
,���&���5�
�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



���&������������������)�����=������������&�������������������������*��,������������
��5��:���/�����,�%�"����������,�����������������)��"�����(������������������������
�������� ���� ��,������ ����� ��� (������ ��� ����� �%�� ������� ��� ����� ����� �� ��4���
�*������(�����&��������������������"�������&������*�,������ �����������&������5��/��
������2*������� ����������������������������&���(������������� �������� �����)������
������,���������(��������������,,�����=������&�2�������,����(�������5�
�
:������������� ����������� ���� ��*���� ��� ������� ���� ���(� ���������� ��� ���� ���*�� ���
*������*�� 	5�>� �,� ���� ��*���� ���� ��� *����������� ���� ������� ����������<��� ��������� 7�
-"������ �������!���� ���%����"����<�	<��� 1�9�<�9<��5� � +��(���*����������� ������ ���
�������������������(����%����"��������������*���������������*�����������,������������
(��� ��(� *����������� ���� ������5� � +�� ���� ���� ����� ����� ���� *������� ���� &����
���*�����5� �:���/�����,�%�"����������,�����������������)��"����������(�������
�����%��*����(�����&������(��������������������&��(����(�����**�����������������
���(�����&����������,������,�������*��*�����,��������*���5�
�
���������(������������"�������!�*���������,�-�����)������)��"������!-))�����*����
������(�����(����������"�������
?�(�������������(�����������*���������������(���
���(�����������5��:���/�����,�%�"����������,�����������������)��"�������*������
����� ����� ���� ��,����� ���� ��*��� ���� ���*��2���� �,� ���� @������� !-))� �����"��5��
/�(�"���� ���&���� ����� ���� "��(� ����� �,� ����� (��� ���� ����� �� �������� ���*������
�����(�������� �����*�� �,� ����@������ ��� ������� ������� &�� �����(������ �������(�������
����5���
�
:�����*���������������������&����,����"������*��"��������������(�������������������
���� ������&���� ��� �� ������� �,� ���*������� �����"��5� ����&���� ��@������ �&���� ����
�����,������������**��������(���� ����� ����� �����(���������&��� ����� �����(��������
�2������� �**���������� &��� �������� A,,�����5� � :��� /���� �,� %�"������ ����,���� ����
��������� )��"����� ������� ��� *��"�������&����(���� �� &����� ��(�� �,� ������������
���**����������5�
�
���	������������
�
0)1� ����&�2�&��*������"3���"�
�
0#1���� ����� ���������� �42&������ ���� "���22��������� �5�&� ���� ��2�&������ ���

�"�!�� ��+��!� ��&5�+��� ��6�� � ��� !�� � ��� �+6��7!�" �� 8��&���� ��"�
+����"�&������� �������!"��������"�������7����������7�&6�� �"�'��7��+�����
����+�&2�&��������"�&",�

�
	� �9���������	���9��������������:�
���

�
;������� ����������3�5�
	��,� �������������=�������������
>�
�������
�����(������
��*�������������������������*��"��������,�:���'�����������������������*����������,���
����)�����������������������&���������"�������&���������"�����,���������*����&��
����!���������,�'�(��/%�����-����������������(��������"��� ����*������ ��������
����,�������,�����)���������������5���
�
:��� !�������� ��*������ ����� ���� #�"�������� ����������� ��� (��� ���� ������ ���� ����
���*����&�������,�����������������������������(�����*��������������������������&��������
�,� ����)��������� �������(����� ��������*�(��� ��� ������*��*��5� �/�(�"���������������
����� ��� �**��*������ ������������ ���� &���� *������� ���� �������� ���������� ,����(����

Page 2



����������*�����"�5� �)�&4���� ���������������**��"���� �������������� ������������� ����
��������(������������������,����(���
�

•� :��� %���"���� -����������� �#������� ������*����� A����� 
����� (����� �����
��������*�����*����(�������"����������������� �,����&����������1�*����
���&�����,�����"�������������������$��������(����&����"����5�

�
•� :��� '����� -����������� ������� ����� �,� �������� �� ������ 
��6� (�����
*������&�������������������,��������� ����**��� ������&�����,� ����"����
������������(����&����"����5�

�
•� :�����@���������,��������������������������"�����������������������(����
&���&�������5�

�
•� :���)���������������,���$�������(����&���&�������5�

�
•� :��� ;����1����� :��&����� �'����� #�"�������� )��������� ��� $��������� ����
����*������� 4�������� ���&���������&�����������������*�������&���� ��������
����������������,�������������**�����������������������������,� ������
���������� ������������� (���� ����� ���� 4������������ �"��� ���� �������� �,� ������
�������������&���5�
�

:������������������� ����� ����!�*��������,�������������������'�����#�"��������
�!�'#�� ��� ���� ���������������"������ ����� ���� �������� ���������� �������(��� ���&��
�&�����������������������������������������
�

B������������(������"����������������������*�����������������������*�&�������"����&���
��������C����������������������������������������&���������&����������������������
��� ��,������� ��� �,,���� ������ ��������� �������� (���� ��� &�������� ,��� ����
� ��������������"�����5D�

�
:���!����������������������������������������������,��������������C���"���������������
������������ ������������ �,�����������5� � :���� (����� &�� ��� *����� ,���� �� ,�2��� �����
�B�����**����������D��(�����(������������&�������������&���(�����&���,�����������������
�����"���%�����-�����5� � +��(�����������������������������(����������������&�������
������������������*�������(���������&�������������������*������������**����������������
&����������(���5�
�
:���#�"��������������������������� ���(�������������������������������������������
�,� �������� ��� �,,���� ���� (����� ������� ������ ��� ���� �&������ �,� �� ���������� ����� �,�
��������� ������������ ���� ���� �&���� ������ �,,���� ,��� *�������� ����� &�� *������� ������
*�������� ���������� &�,���� ������ �,� ���� �������� ���������� ��� ������ ����� ����� �����
��*��������5����&��������������������(�����������������&����@����������������������
��������*�������� ��������������(��������� &������(��� ������� ������ *�������� *��������
��*��*����� ,���*������������5�:���#�"�������� ��������������(��,��� ,������� ������*���
(���� ������ ��@���������� (����� ����������� �� ��������� �,,����5� � /�(�"���� ����
��@��������� ,��� ������ ������������ ��� ���*�� �� ������ ����� �,� �������� ���� ,��� ������
�������������&���� ��� �&���� &�� ����� ����� �,� �������� (����� &�� �&�������� &��� ������
��������������������,������(����������*���������(��"���������������,��������5�
�
:��� ��@��������� ��� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� (����� &�� �&�������� &��� ������
������������ (����� &�� ����(���� �,� ����� (������� ��� ����&����� "��������� ����������

Page 3



����������� ��� ��������� ���*������� �&���� ���� �������� �,� �������� ���� ��1�*����
���&���5��)���������������(���������������������������=����������������������&���&���
��� �������� &��� (����� ���� &�� �&��� ��� ���*���� ��� ���@����,�� ���&���� ,���� ��������
���&�����*5�
�
���&���� ������� ��������� ����� ������ ���������� ����������� ���� &�� E���������=5��
/�(�"���� ����� ����� ����������� ��� �**��������� ��� (���� ��� *���������*�� &�� ������� ��
��������� �**������ ���� 4������� ������������� �� )��������� ���������� ����� �*� �,�
���&����� ,���� ������� ���� �,� ���� ����������� -����������5� � +�� (��� ����� �����������
�**��*������ ����2*����� ����*����&�������,�*�������������������������&���=�������,�
�������� ��� (����� ���� �,� ���� ����������� -����������� ������ ����� �*5� � +�� (��� �����
*��*����� ����� 3����&������� -����������� ������ &�� ��@������� ��� ����� ����� ����
���*������������"����&���������������&���5�
�
:���!����������"����������������������������*��*������,�����������������**���������
���� ��(� )��������� ������� ������ &�� �2*������ ����� ���� '�������� ����� ���� &����
�������� ���� ���� ������������ ����� (����� �����*��� ���� ��(� ������������ &������
�"����&��5�
�
���	�����������
�
0)1� ����+��������������&�2�&��*������"3��
�
0#1� ����
�����&�� �	���+�&�*��&�8�����"����+������������4����������2&�5�������

��� ����
�!!� ��"� 2&������ 2&�2���!�� ��� �� ����&�������� � ��� ��������������
7����&� �&"������7���������+�!���'�&��2��"��������
�!!���+�����������+��"3�
��"�

�
0;1� ������&�+��&������7<�9����"�������
��� ������*��&�8�����"� ����42!�&��

����2����*�!��'����+���������� ���
�&��'��"������"�&"�����������<���"��
�2����
��*�&���&����!!���� ����
�&��'��"�������&�����<���+������"����!����
���� ��7� !� ��!������ ��"� ���� &� �!������� ����� 7��!"� ��"�&2��� ��� 7�&��
6��7�<���"�*&�� ���&�2�&�����������&�������� �����������������,�

�
?� 
��
��=�����#()(��

�
-� ��*���� &�� ����!�������� �,� ;������� ��������� �������&����-��� 
����� �������� ���� ����
����������@������ �������������*������5�:�����*����������������� ��������������(�����
(�����**����&���������������������������"�����,���*���������������������-��5�
��
:��������������������������*�������,������������������*��������������*������������
�,� ���� -���� (����� ���� ���������� &���� *������� ,��� �� -*���� 
���5� � ;����(���� ����
�������������*���������� ��*���������������������&�����������5��A��9��������
����
��������������,�
�����������*�&�������������(������#������������������������-�������
���������������������*�����������������(�����&����
����
���5�
��
-����,��-��1���&�����������(���������������������*�������-**����2��5��:��������&����
*��*����� ��� ����������� (���� �+�;-� &���� *�������5� � -�� ������� *���� ���� ��(� &����
*��*����������������������������������*����������**��*��������������������*���(����
������@�����������,�����-��5��:����(���������������������*�������-**����2�
5��)�������
�� �,� ����-**����2� ������,���� ���� �������� ����������(������ �����������C� ���� �������� 
�
������,������������������@�����5�

Page 4



���	������
�
���������&�2�&��*������",�
�

>� ���������	
�%	9��
������	�����������	

������
�

�����
�
:����������������������������������������&�������������&��������������������
�������&����������,��������������&�������&����,�����*�&�����
���������5��:����������
������@����������&���=�"��(�5� � +��(������&���=� ���������� ������������ ���� ������� ���
��������������*��"�������(�������������2�����������,��������������5�
�

6� ��:��� ������� 	�� ������:� �9�� �>�
.��	�� 	�� �9�� ��.	���
��������������?�	��������������������	
.�����<����	?��:�
����	�
���	�������������9��.��������	���9��.���������.�
�����
�
:���!�������� �,� '�(��/%�����-���������������� ��,������ �������������� ����� ����
��*�������+����3�5�6���������������7�%�"��(��,���%������)������������*������7�����
������� ��� ���� ��� ������� �� *������*�� �6��� �,� ����� �� ��� )�������� �
-� �,� ���� ������
#�"��������-����86
���������������2���5��:�����*����(���������������2��*��&�������
��� ������,���� ���� ����������,� ������(���(���� ������&4�����,� ���*������5� �/�(�"�������
������ ���&���� ������ (���� �������� ��� ���� *�&���� �������� ���� ��"���� ��� ����
����������(�������������������,�������2��*������,����������������*�&�������������(�����&��
&�������"���&����������5�
�
���	������
�
����������4��2�����*��!����"����&��2�+���������&�2�&������������,�@��������� ��"��
�� � ��5��7� ��� �� ��+���� ����"�&"�� ���2!����� A� ��"� ��� *�� +����"�&�"� ��� ����
2&����+���������2&������"�2�*!�+,�
�

F� �����?�	����������������������	
.�������
�
�����������!�%�&�������,�����������(�����������������,�&��������(�������������������5�
�
-� ��*���� &�� ���� !�������� �,� '�(�� /%� ���� -����� ����������� ����������� ����
��������� �,� �� ������� ���������� ���*������ ���,������� ),$� 
���<�	�5� � :��� ,����
������������,�(����������**�����(��������������������*���5��-��������������"��������
���� &���� ������ (���� ���� ��������� ���*������ ,���� ����������� ������ ��������
���&����� ���� &���� �**������ ��� �� ��"������ ��*���� �(����� ���� �����������
������������������*��������������+�������-�������������������������,����������������
���������� ���*������ ,���� (����� ���� &���� �����"��� ���� (����� ���������� ,����
���&���5��:����������,����������*������������������������*������,���5��:���������
���� ����������� ����� ��*���� ��� ���� �������� ��� F� -*���� 
���� ���� ���� ��4������� ����
����������������,���������,���������������&��*��"����5��-,�������������&��������������
����� +�������-�����������������,����&�������� �����"��������9�������
����&����
��,������������ ���� ����� �������� ���� &���� ��*������ ���� ���� ������� ������� ����
�����"�������������������*������,���5��:��������������������������,����������*���������
����)��������������� ,��� $�������(��� ��� �����*�� �,� ��� ���� ������� �������� ��� ��� ����
������*�����&��(����������"��������*�������������**���������*������,���5��A��������
��������� ���*������ ,�������� &���� ��� ���� ,���� ���� ����)��������������� ,���$�������

Page 5



(�����"����������������5� � +�� ��������,������ �������������� ���(������� ������������������
���>�����
���5�
�
A��8�����
�����������*����������@������(�������)���������������,���$�����������
����������,�����������������*�������&��������,����������������5��A�����������������,�
������ ���� ������ ���� &������ �**�����5� � :��� !�������� ��,������ �,� ���� ���*�� ��� ����
������ ��� �����,�� ������������ ���� ������"�� ���� ���������� ���� ���� ��"��"������ �,� ����
��"���� �����"��� ,���� ���� )��������� ������ ,��� $������5� � :��� +������� -����������
������ ���� &���� ���"����� ������ ��� F� 
���� 
���� ���� ����������� ���� ��"�����
���*�����5� � +�� (��� ��,������ ��� ���� )��������� ������ ,��� $������� ���� ��������� ��
�������������&����*��������(������,�"��(����������������(����������(�����5���
�
:���!���������*��������������������������,�������+�������-���������������������"����
����(����� �������������� ���� ������� ����� ���� ��������������� �,� ���������� ���� ����
&��������������*��&�����������5��/����,������������������������*����������������,����
���&����(���(����������&4������,��������*��������������������*�������5�

�����������'�%�(�����������������������������������������&����������(����
����������(����*�����������&����*��� ���*����� ���������� ��� ����������**���
������ ����(���� ��*��"�������(����� &������5� � :���!�������� ��,������ �����
,��������*�����(�����&����������&��������,��������/�����,�'������������&���
)��"������&�,���������(����*�&�������������������5��

����������� !� ��������� ����� ���� ���������� ����� ������ ���� &���� �� ��������
���������� ��� �������� �������� ��*�������� ��� ������� �����5� -�� �� �����@������
����������&������� ����*������� ��"��(�(��������� ���� �����������&�����������
(���� ��� ���������� �������������� �����5� :���� ������ ���,,� �������� ���� ��������
�������(�������*����������������������*�������������*���������������(�&��
*������*���������"������������5�

�
���	������
�
���������+��������������&�2�&����"������+�����������&�+��&������7<�9����"�������

��� ������ 7��!"� *�� ��6�� � ��� ����&�� ��� 2&�5���� ����!�&� �����6��� �&���
�++�&&�� <�*������",�
�

8� ��:���� 
�������� �� ����=�� ��� �	��������:� ����������
�	
.��������
�
����������������������(����2������������**������*�����������������������,��������
����������"���������������,���������(������������������(����)������������*������5��/��
��,����������������*������ �����(�����(��8�������������������������������"����������
��������(�������������������?�(���������**����������"������������,,����5�
�
:���!���������,�'�(��/%�����-������������������,������������������������������=��
����������(���"���������,�������������������&��������������������������������5��/��
���(���������,�������������������������������*���������������*������������(�������
����������5�
�
����������� ��������� ����� ���� ���������� ����� ���� )�������� ���������� ������ ����
�������� ��� ���� �������� ��� 8� 
���� 
����� ��� ���������� �� *����� �,� (���� ��� ����

Page 6



*����������������)������������*������������������������(�������������,��(���������
����������������"����&��������5�
�
��� .� /�������� ��@������ (������� ���� !�������� ���� ��,,������� ���,,� ��� ����� (����
)������������*�����������,���������*��&�����������������2����������,,�(����������*�&���
�,� ���� (���� ��"��"��5� � :��� !�������� ��,������ ����� ���� *��&���� (��� ��� *���� ���,,�
��*������ ���� ��� *���� ������ ���,�������� *���������5� � /�(�"���� ��� *�������� ��� �������
)��������� ���*������� (���� ��"��� �� ������� *�������� ,���� ��(� ��5� � � ����������� ��
���������*��*����������������������*��,������������������� ����*�����*�����)���������
���*�������*������5�
�
�

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

29 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS MADE UNDER 

THE COUNCIL’S MEMBERS’ CODE OF 

CONDUCT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of all the complaints made 

against Wirral Members which have alleged that the Council’s Members’ Code 
of Conduct has been breached. 

 
1.2 Due to legal and confidentiality reasons, the level of detail provided in the 

summary, which is set out in Appendix 1, has been restricted. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
2.1 The Committee is recommended to: 
 

(a) Note the summary of the complaints received by the Council, set out at 
Appendix 1 to this report, in relation to alleged breaches of the Council’s 
Members’ Code of Conduct; 

 
(b) Require the information set out in Appendix A to be updated for and 

reported to all future meetings of this Committee; and  
 
(c) Consider adopting the amended draft Local Protocol on Local Assessment 

and Investigation of Allegations of Misconduct by Members, as set out in 
Appendix 2, with immediate effect, to ensure that there is in place a clear 
timescale for progressing complaints. 

 
3.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
3.1 The Committee has previously expressed serious concern about the time it has 

taken to deal with the complaints against Wirral Members alleging that the 
Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct has been breached. 

 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



 
3.2 This issue was considered by the Scrutiny Programme Board on 8 September 

2011 (see below) when it was resolved, amongst other things, ‘That the 
Standards Committee be recommended to put in place proper timescales and a 
monitoring regime for dealing with complaints’. 

 
3.3 Committee is recommended to consider adopting a Local Protocol on Local 

Assessment and Investigation of Allegations of Misconduct by Members with 
immediate effect.  This will ensure that there is in place a clear timescale for 
progressing complaints. 

 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (“the Act”) 

provides, among other things, for a revised ethical framework for local 
government.  The implications of the Act were reported to the Council’s 
Standards Committee on 28 January and 31 March 2008.   

 
4.2 The relevant provisions were brought into force on 8 May 2008 by the 

Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 (“the Regulations”). 
 
4.3 The Act made a number of key changes to the ethical framework under which 

local authorities were required to operate.  These are: 
 

• Standards Committees would be responsible for receiving allegations 
made against Members and deciding whether any action should be 
taken (referred to as ‘local assessment’). 

 
• Standards Committees must be chaired by an independent member. 

 
• Standards Committees would report periodically to the Standards 

Board for England now Standards for England (“SfE”). 
 

• The SfE will be responsible for monitoring and ensuring the 
effectiveness of local arrangements, including supporting authorities 
which are experiencing difficulties and driving up their performance. 

 
4.4 Annual Council on 14 July 2008 approved the requisite changes to the 

Council’s Constitution, namely amendments to the Standards Committee’s 
Terms of Reference which also included new terms of reference for Initial 
Assessment, Review and Hearings Panels as required under the Act. 

 
4.5 Members of this Committee have expressed dissatisfaction with delays in 

dealing with Standards complaints.  In response to this, on 26 January, 2011 I 
submitted a report to this Committee, seeking approval for a Local Protocol 
on Local Assessment and Investigation of Allegations of Misconduct by 
Members. The aim of the local protocol was to improve the manner in which 
allegations and complaints are handled and processed. 

 
 

Page 10



4.6 Members of the Committee expressed concern that delays in dealing with 
standards complaints were unacceptable for all parties concerned.  However, 
Members were of the view that the timescales within the draft Local Protocol 
were not sufficiently clear and that there was a need for ‘non-complex’ 
complaints to be dealt with within six months of receipt of the complaint.   

 
4.7 Members further questioned, notwithstanding any amendments required, 

whether adoption of a Local Protocol should be deferred whilst clarity on the 
implications of the current Localism Bill was provided.  Members also 
suggested that officers should explore possible collaborative working 
arrangements concerning standards matters with neighbouring local 
authorities.  In the light of these considerations, Committee resolved:  

 
‘That this matter be deferred for a further report to a future meeting of 
the Committee in order that amendments to the protocol can be made to 
address (i) the need for greater clarity on timescales, (ii) the 
implications of the Localism Bill and (iii) if possible, any collaborative 
working arrangements with neighbouring Councils.’ 

 
4.8 Given subsequent uncertainties as to the future of the Standards regime 

under the Localism Bill this Local Protocol has not been referred back to this 
Committee.  However, given continuing Member concern about delay, this 
Committee is recommended to consider adopting a Local Protocol with 
immediate effect.  This will ensure that there is in place a clear timescale for 
progressing complaints.  The draft Local Protocol is attached at Appendix 2.  
The revision (shown as Track Changes) inserts a new paragraph 2.2 to reflect 
this Committee’s comments on the original document. 

 
4.9 On 9 June 2011, the Council’s Scrutiny Programme Board requested that 

details be provided at the next Board meeting of all complaints received in 
pursuance of the revised ethical framework.  This information was provided to 
the Board on 8 September 2011 in table form, substantially as in Appendix A.  
The draft Minutes of that meeting record that it was resolved: 

 
(1) That the Scrutiny Programme Board is alarmed and disappointed to 

note the amount of time it is taking to determine Standards 
complaints, with some complaints taking almost two years to 
complete, and believes that this is unfair to both complainants and to 
those complained against. 

 
(2) That the Scrutiny Programme Board is also concerned about the 

amount of time being taken from the registration of a complaint to 
allocating to an Initial Assessment Panel and notes that, in one 
reported case this was in excess of16 weeks. 

 
(3) That the Scrutiny Programme Board is aware that individual 

Members of the Council as well as the Standards Committee have 
made repeated representations to the Director of Law, HR and Asset 
Management and his Department about their concerns because of 
delays and have asked for the process to be speeded up. 

 

Page 11



 
(4) That the Scrutiny Programme Board notes that despite repeated 

requests to the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management, no 
apparent improvements have been made to the way in which 
Standards complaints are being handled and unacceptable delays 
are still being allowed to occur. 

 
(5) That the summary of complaints received by the Council, set out in 

the appendix to the report now submitted, in relation to alleged 
breaches of the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct, be noted. 

 
(6) That the Standards Committee be recommended to put in place 

proper timescales and a monitoring regime for dealing with 
complaints. 

 
The Board also requested some additional information which was incorporated 
in a revised table.  This was circulated electronically after the meeting and is 
incorporated in Appendix 1 to this report.  Committee will  

 
4.10 Committee previously suggested that officers should explore possible 

collaborative working arrangements concerning standards matters with 
neighbouring local authorities.  Discussions have taken place at officer level 
with Chester and Cheshire West Council and two current matters (three 
complaints) are being investigated by a solicitor from that authority. 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
5.1 Given the purpose of this report is to provide information to the Committee, no 

relevant risks are identified. 
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
6.1 Given the purpose of this report is to provide information to the Committee, no 

other options were considered. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION  
 
7.1 Given the purpose of this report is to provide information to the Committee, no 

consultation issues are relevant. 
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1 There are no such implications arising. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  
 
9.1 There are no such implications arising. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1 There are no such implications arising. 

Page 12



 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no such implications arising. 
 
11.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 (a)  Is an EIA required?   No 
 (b)  If ‘yes’, has one been completed? N/A  
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  
 
12.1 There are no such implications arising. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are no such implications arising. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Bill Norman 
  Director of Law, HR and Asset Management 
  telephone: 0151 691 8598 
  email:  billnorman@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1: Summary of Complaints made under the Council’s Members’ Code of 

Conduct. 
 
Appendix 2 Amended Draft Local Protocol on Local Assessment and Investigation 

of Allegations of Misconduct by Members. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 
None 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
Council Meeting  Date 

Standards Committee 

Scrutiny Programme Board 

 

26 January 2011 

9 June 2011 

8 June 2011 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

 
Summary of Complaints Received about Members’ Conduct 

 
Number Date of 

Complaint 
Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2008/01 

 Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 

10 July 
2008 
 
 
 
 

Referred for 
Investigation 

20 March 
2009 

30 March 2009 
 
 
 

16 July 
2009 

Completed 
 
1. Apology 

required.  
Apology 
provided 20 
July 2009. 

2. 5 day 
suspension. 

SfE 
2008/02 

15 August 
2008 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 
Used 
position 
improperly to 
confer on or 
secure an 
advantage or 
disadvantage 
 

10 
September 
2008 

Referred for 
Investigation 
(Weightmans) 

30 April 
2009 

7 August 2009 
No Further 
Action 

 Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 

P
age 15



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

Number Date of 
Complaint 

Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2009/01 

3 February 
2009 

Conflict of 
interest 
Failure to 
declare 
Personal and 
Prejudicial 
interest 
 

25 February 
2009 

No Further 
Action 

   Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 

SfE 
2009/02/03 

7 April 
2009 

Failure to 
declare 
Personal and 
Prejudicial 
interest  
 
 
 
 
 
 

29 April 
2009 

Referred for 
Investigation 
 
Complainant 
failed to co-
operate, so 
investigation 
was delayed  

16 February 
2010 

24 February 
2010  
 
IAP decided 
Steps Other 
than an 
Investigation 
(Training 
Required) 
 
 

 Completed 
 
Training re 
Declarations of 
Interest and 
Register of 
Interests. 
 
(Training 
completed) 

SfE 
2009/04 

14 July 
2009 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 
 
 

28 August 
2009 

Referred for 
Investigation 

10 February 
2010 

25 March 2009 
Referred for a 
Final Hearing 

2 and 22 
Novembe
r 2010 

Completed 
 
Verbal Apology 
at Council 

P
age 16



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

Number Date of 
Complaint 

Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2009/05 

4 
November 
2009 

Conflict of 
interest 
 
Failure to 
declare 
Personal and 
Prejudicial 
interests  
 
Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
 

25 January 
2010 

Referred for 
Investigation 

20 October 
2010 

 2 
Novembe
r 2010 

Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 
 
(Complainant 
failed to co-
operate with 
Investigation) 

SfE 
2009/06 

21 
December 
2009 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
 

25 January 
2010 
 
 
 
 

Referred for 
investigation – 
25 January 
2010 
 
External 
investigator 
appointed 
 
 
 

 Scheduled for 3 
October 2011. 
 
 
Cost of 
investigation to 
date - £2,726.60 
 

  

P
age 17



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

Number Date of 
Complaint 

Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2010/01 

5 January 
2010 

Breached a 
confidence 
 
Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 

25 January 
2010 
 
 
8 April 2010 
 
 

Deferred for 
further 
information 
 
No Further 
Action 

 29 July 2010 
Standards 
Review Panel 
No Further 
Action 
 
 

 Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 

SfE 
2010/02 

6 January 
2010 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 
Used 
position 
improperly to 
confer on or 
secure an 
advantage or 
disadvantage 
 

25 January 
2010 

Referral for 
Investigation 
 
 
External 
Investigator 
appointed 

17 
September 
2010 
 
 
External 
Costs of 
investigation
- £6,038.60 

 20 
Decembe
r 2010 – 
No 
Further 
Action 

Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 

SfE 
2010/03 

6 January 
2010 

Failure to 
declare 
Personal and 
Prejudicial 
interest  
 

25 January 
2010 

No Further 
Action 

   Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 

P
age 18



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

Number Date of 
Complaint 

Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2010/04 

9 February 
2010 
 
26 
February 
2010 – 
superseded 
previous 
complaint 
form 

Conflict of 
Interest 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 
Used 
position 
improperly to 
confer on or 
secure an 
advantage or 
disadvantage 

8 April 2010 
 
 
 
3 March 
2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8 June 
2011 

Deferred for 
further 
information 
 
Initial Referral 
to Standards 
for England for 
consideration 
 
Referred back 
to Standards 
for England for 
consideration 
 
 

   Standards for 
England 
determined No 
Further Action 

SfE 
2010/05 

30 March 
2010 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 

29 July 
2010 
 
 
 
  

Referred for 
Investigation 
 
 
 

11 February 
2011 

3 March 2011 
 
Arrangements 
are in the 
process of being 
made for a 
hearing  
 
(Subject Cllr no 
longer a 
Councillor) 
 
 

  

P
age 19



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

Number Date of 
Complaint 

Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2010/06 

6 January 
2010 

Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 
Used 
position 
improperly to 
confer on or 
secure an 
advantage or 
disadvantage 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 October 
2010   
 
31 January 
2011 

Decision 
deferred 
 
No Further 
Action 
 

  Review 
Panel 23 
March 
2011 – 
No 
Further 
Action 

Completed 
 
No further 
action) 

SfE 
2010/07 

30 
September 
2010 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 
 
 
 
 

20 January 
2011 

No Further 
Action 

   Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 

P
age 20



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

Number Date of 
Complaint 

Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2011/01 

10 
February 
2011 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 

3 March 
2011 

Referred for 
Investigation –  
 
External 
Investigator 
Appointed 
 
No Interim 
invoice yet 
rendered  
 

    

SfE 
2011/02 
linked to 
2011/01 
above 

11 
February 
2011 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 

3 March 
2011 

Referred for 
Investigation – 
 
External 
Investigator 
appointed 
 
No Interim 
invoice yet 
rendered  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

P
age 21



Shirley Hudspeth - August 2011 

Number Date of 
Complaint 

Nature of 
Complaint 

IAP Date Outcome of 
IAP 

Final Report 
Completed 

Consideration 
Hearing of 
Final Report 
(Outcome) 

Final 
Hearing 

Outcome/ 
Current 
Position  

SfE 
2011/03 

4 May 2011 Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 
Used 
position 
improperly to 
confer on or 
secure an 
advantage or 
disadvantage 
 

25 August 
2011 

Referred for 
investigation 
on 26 August 
2011. 
 
External 
Investigator 
appointed 
 
No Interim 
invoice yet 
rendered  
 

    

SfE 
2011/04 

5 August 
2011 

Failed to 
treat others 
with respect 
 
Bringing 
office into 
disrepute 
 

22 August 
2011 

No further 
action 

   Completed 
 
(No further 
action) 

 

P
age 22



 

 1
 

Local Protocol 

 
on 
 
 

Local Assessment and Investigation of 
Allegations of Misconduct by Members 

 
 
 
 
 

REVISED DRAFT –September 2011

Page 23



 

 

Contents 
 Page 
1. Interpretation………………………………………………………………….. 3 
   
2. Introduction and summary…………………………………………………... 3 
   
3. What can be dealt with under this local protocol …………………………. 3 
   
4. What we cannot deal with under this protocol ……………………………. 4 
   
5. Acknowledging receipt of a complaint……………………………………… 4 
   
6. Anonymous complaints……………………………………………………… 4 
   
7. Pre-assessment reports and enquiries ……………………………………. 5 
   
8. Access to meetings and decision making…………………………………. 5 
   
9. Confidentiality………………………………………………………………… 5 
   
10. Referrals Initial Assessment Panel………………………………………… 6 
   
10. Referral of a Complaint to the Monitoring Officer for Investigation……… 7 
   
10. Referral of a Complaint to the Monitoring Officer for Other Action……… 8 
   
10. Decision to Take No Action…………………………………………………. 9 
   
10. Referral of a Complaint to Standards for England……………………….. 9 
   
11. Notification of Referrals Initial Assessment Panel’s Decision and Right 

of Review……………………………………………………………………… 
 
11 

   
12. Review Panel ………….……………………………………………………... 11 
   
13. Notification of Review Panel’s Decision………………………….. 11 
   
14. Investigation Reports………………………………………………………… 12 
   
15. Standards Hearing Panel……………………………………………………. 12 
   
16. Conflicts of Interest…………………………………………………………... 12 
   
17. Role of Investigator…………………………………………………………... 13 
   
18. Confidentiality of Information gathered during an Investigation………… 13 
   
19. Production of Documents, Information and Explanations……………….. 13 
   
20. Interviews……………………………………………………………………… 13 
   
21. Refer Back to Standards for England……………………………………… 14 
   
22. Investigator’s Report…………………………………………………………. 14 

Page 24



 

 2
 

23 Meetings of the Initial Assessment Panel, Review Panel and the 
Standards Hearing Panel …………………………………………………… 

 
15 

   
24. Rights and Responsibilities of Members and the Investigator…………... 15 
   
25. Processing the Investigator’s Report………………………………………. 16 
   
26. Pre-Hearing…………………………………………………………………… 17 
   
27. Consideration of Investigator’s Report…………………………………….. 18 
   
28. Preliminary Procedural Issues……………………………………………… 18 
   
29. Presentation of Evidence (Stage 1)………………………………………. 19 
   
30. Did the Member Fail to Follow the Code of Conduct for Members (or 

Local Protocol)? (Stage 2)………………………………………………….. 
 
20 

   
31. If the Member has not failed to Follow the Code of Conduct for 

Members (or Local Protocol)………………………………………………... 
 
20 

   
32. If the Member has Failed to Follow the Code of Conduct (or Local 

Protocol) (Stage 3)…………………………………………………………… 
 
20 

   
33. Recommendations to the Council………………………………………….. 20 
   
34. The Written Decision………………………………………………………… 21 
   
35. Failure to comply with the Requirements of this Protocol……………….. 22 
   
36. Modification of Procedure…………………………………………………… 22 
 

Page 25



 

 3
 

1. Interpretation 
 
1.1 ‘Member’ means the member of the Council who is the subject of the allegation unless 

stated otherwise or the context so requires.  ‘Member’ includes all elected members of 
Wirral Council and all non-elected co-opted members of any committee (including the 
Standards Committee and any Overview and Scrutiny committee) (or any sub-
committee) irrespective of whether they have any voting rights and also the member’s 
nominated representative. 

 
1.2 ‘Monitoring Officer’ means the employee appointed to this role by the Council pursuant to 

section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (‘the 1989 Act’). (The 
Monitoring Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Council acts lawfully and 
properly in everything it does.)  ‘Monitoring Officer’ includes any Deputy Monitoring 
Officer appointed by the Monitoring Officer, whether generally or for a specific purpose, 
in accordance with the 1989 Act. 

 
1.3 ‘Investigator’ means the Monitoring Officer or other person nominated by the Monitoring 

Officer to investigate a complaint. 
 
1.4 ‘The Committee Services Officer’ means an officer of the authority responsible for 

supporting the Standards Committee/Panel discharge of its functions and recording the 
decisions of the Standards Committee/Panel. 

 
1.5 ‘Legal Advisor’ means the officer responsible for providing legal advice to the 

Committee/Sub-Committee.  This may be the Monitoring Officer, another legally qualified 
officer of the authority, or someone appointed for this purpose from outside the authority. 

 
1.6 ‘The Chair’ refers to the relevant person presiding at the Standards Committee/Panel. 
 
2. Introduction and Summary 
 
2.1 This Protocol has been developed in accordance with the guidance issued by Standards 

for England (‘SFE’).  It should be read in conjunction with the “Local Assessment of 
Complaints” guidance published by Standards for England and The Standards 
Committee (England) Regulations 2008. 

 
2.2 It is important that complaints are dealt with in a fair, efficient, effective and timely 

manner.  This Protocol set out clear timescales for each stage of the complaints process.  
Normally complaints will be determined within six months from first receipt of the 
complaint, although complex cases, or other exceptional factors (for example, the long 
term illness of a key witness), may lead to this timescale being exceeded.  Where it 
becomes apparent that a complaint may take more than six months to resolve, the Chair 
of the Standards Committee and Group spokespersons will be kept advised of the 
reasons for the delay and the likely timescales for completion of the matter. 

 
3. What Can Be Dealt With Under This Local Protocol 
 
3.1 Complaints about the behaviour of a Member must be made in writing (by letter or email) 

using the official form obtainable from Committee Services (or the Council’s website), 
and addressed to the Monitoring Officer.  In line with the requirements of the Equality Act 
2010 (and other related legislation), the Council can make reasonable arrangements to 
assist people if they have a disability that prevents them from making a complaint in 
writing. 

Page 26



 

 4
 

 
3.2 In order to avoid unnecessary use of public resources, the complainant must specify on 

the form what the subject member is alleged to have said or done, any corroborating 
evidence or details of people who will be able to provide it, and a copy of any 
documentary evidence the complainant needs to rely on. 

 
3.3 Complaints must be about a Member breaking any part of their Council’s Code of 

Conduct.  This includes: 
 

- Unlawfully discriminating against someone. 
- Failing to treat people with respect. 
- Bullying. 
- Doing something to prevent those who work for the Council from being unbiased. 
- Revealing information that was given in confidence, or stopping someone getting 

information they are entitled to by law. 
- Damaging the reputation of their office or Council. 
- Using their position improperly to their own or someone else’s advantage or 

disadvantage. 
- Misusing the Council’s resources. 
- Allowing the Council’s resources to be misused for the activities of a registered 

political party. 
- Failing to register financial or other interests. 
- Failing to reveal a personal interest at a meeting. 
- Taking part in a meeting or making a decision where the member has an interest that 

is so significant that it is likely to affect his or her judgment. 
- Failing to register any gifts or hospitality they have received in their role as a member, 

worth over £25.00. 
 
4. What Cannot Deal With Under This Local Protocol 
 
4.1 There are some complaints that are not legally capable of being dealt with under this 

procedure which is solely for dealing with alleged member misconduct: 
 

- Complaints about policy or decisions made. 
- Complaints where a member is not named. 
- Complaints that are not in writing (with the exception set out in paragraph 6.1 below). 
- Incidents or actions that are not covered by the Code of Conduct or one of the 

Council’s local protocols. 
- Incidents that are about a fault in the way the Council has or has not done something.  

This is known as maladministration and may be a matter for the Local Government 
Ombudsman. 

- Complaints about people employed by the Council– they will be dealt with through the 
Corporate Complaints Procedures or the Council’s disciplinary procedures. 

- Complaints about the way in which the Council conducts and records its meetings – 
these should be referred direct to the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 
5. Acknowledging Receipt of a Complaint 
 
5.1 Within five working days of receiving a complaint against a member, the complainant 

shall be sent an acknowledgement of their complaint.   
 
 
 

Page 27



 

 5
 

6. Anonymous Complaints 
 
6.1 Further action will not be taken in respect of anonymous complaints unless to do so 

would be in the public interest.  For example, if an allegation is made of a criminal nature 
and evidence is provided to support the allegation, the matter may be referred to the 
Police. 

 
6.2 Details of the allegation will be retained by the Monitoring Officer for future reference and 

monitoring purposes. 
 
 
7. Pre-Assessment Reports and Enquiries 
 
7.1 Where a complaint is not about an allegation of member misconduct or there is 

insufficient information provided on the complaint form, the Monitoring Officer will inform 
the complainant of this issue within five working days of receipt of the complaint form.  
The Monitoring Officer may carry out a preliminary investigation in accordance with SFE 
guidance, to assist a decision (in consultation with the Chair of the Standards 
Committee). 

 
7.2 Where the Monitoring Officer is of the opinion that there is the potential for local 

resolution, he/she may approach the member complained against and ask whether the 
member admits, denies or otherwise wishes to comment on the alleged breach and 
whether he/she would be prepared to offer an apology or undertake other remedial 
action.   

 
7.3 The Monitoring Officer will decide (and if considered appropriate in consultation with the 

Chair of the Standards Committee) whether to refer the complaint to the Initial 
Assessments Panel or to respond to the complainant explaining why the matter is not 
being taken further.  In reaching decisions on the assessment, the Monitoring Officer will 
take full account of Standards for England Guidance and decided case law. 

 
8. Access to Meetings and Decision Making 
 
8.1 In accordance with Regulation 8 of The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 

2008, meetings of the Initial Assessments Panel and Review Panel will not be open to 
the public and are not subject to the notice and publicity requirements of Part 5A of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  The press, Members, officers (except the Monitoring 
Officer, Legal Advisor and Committee Services Officer), members of the public and 
complainant are not permitted to attend meetings of the Initial Assessments Panel and 
Review Panel. Meetings of the Standards Hearing Panel will also not be open to the 
public unless the Standards Hearing Panel agrees to lift the exclusion. 

 
8.2 Agendas and papers for meetings of the Initial Assessments Panel, Review Panel and 

Standards Hearing Panel will normally be sent to the Monitoring Officer, Committee 
Services Officer and Members of the relevant Panel at least four clear working days 
before the date of the meeting. There is no legal entitlement to copies of agendas, 
reports and associated documents, minutes and background papers of meetings of the 
Initial Assessments Panel, Review Panel and Standards Hearing Panel in accordance 
with Regulation 8, but such information will be available to the member complained about 
once the Monitoring Officer is satisfied that sufficient investigation or other action has 
been undertaken and that the potential prejudice to any investigation or the public 
interest in withholding the information no longer applies. 

Page 28



 

 6
 

 
8.3 In accordance with the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008, a summary of 

an Initial Assessments Panel, Review Panel and Standards Hearing Panel decision will 
normally be available to the public upon request. However if the member complained has 
not been found to breach the Members’ Code of Conduct, that member has the right to 
request that the decision not be published. All decisions and information relation to them 
will be kept for six years from the date of the decision of the Sub-Committee. 

 
9. Confidentiality 
 
9.1 The member will (unless otherwise stated in this Local Protocol) be sent a summary of 

the complaint within five working days of receipt unless the Monitoring Officer believes 
that this would be likely to: 
 
(a) put the complainant at risk of bullying, harassment or intimidation; 
 
(b) put other witnesses at risk of bullying, harassment or intimidation; 
 
(c) prejudice any investigation; 
 
(d) prejudice any other action from being taken;  
 
(e) not be in the public interest; and/or 
 
(f) not be consistent with guidance provided by Standards for England. 

 
9.2 Requests for the complainant’s name or details of the complaint to be kept confidential 

will not automatically be granted.  The complainant shall be informed of Monitoring 
Officer’s decision within five working days of receipt of any such request. If a 
complainant’s request for confidentiality is not granted, the complainant may, if 
considered appropriate by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chair of the 
Standards Committee, be afforded the opportunity to withdraw their complaint. 

 
9.3 However, where the matter complained about is very serious, the complaint will proceed. 

In these exceptional circumstances the complainant’s identity may become known or 
have to be given out, even if the complainant has requested confidentiality. 

 
9.4 Where a request is made for confidentiality, the member complained against will not be 

notified of the receipt of the complaint against them until after the Monitoring Officer has 
considered the complaint and the request for confidentiality considered. In all other cases 
the Committee Services Officer will inform the Member complained against within five 
working days of receipt of the complaint unless the Monitoring Officer advises otherwise 
on grounds detailed in paragraph 9.1 above. 

 
10. Referrals to the Initial Assessment Panel 
 
10.1 The Initial Assessment Panel will be made up of one Independent Member of the 

Standards Committee and two Wirral Councillors. The selection of the two Wirral 
Councillors shall be in accordance with the relevant provisions Council’s Constitution. 
The Initial Assessments Panel must be chaired by an Independent Member of the 
Standards Committee. 

 
 

Page 29



 

 7
 

10.2 In order to avoid unnecessary use of public resources, the Initial Assessments Panel 
must be satisfied that there is some degree of likelihood that appropriate evidence may 
be found and that the complaint, if proven, might be a breach of the Code or local 
protocol.  The complainant must provide sufficient information to enable the Initial 
Assessments Panel to conclude that there is prima facie evidence of a breach of the 
Code. The Initial Assessments Panel should, when considering a complaint, consider 
whether the complaint is vexatious, malicious, politically motivated, ‘tit-for-tat’, or made at 
least six months after the event (unless the pattern of behaviour complained about has 
been recently repeated or the evidence relied upon is predominantly documentary). 

 
10.3 The Initial Assessments Panel will meet within twenty working days of the complaint 

being received and will consider any request for confidentiality or withdrawal of the 
complaint.  It will then reach one of the following decisions in respect of the complaint: 

 
(a) Refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer of the Council for investigation or 

other action. 
 
(b) Refer the complaint to Standards for England. 
 
(c) Decide that no action should be taken in respect of the complaint. 

 
10.4 When a matter is referred for investigation or other action, it does not mean that the Initial 

Assessments Panel (or, on appeal, the Review Panel) has made a decision on the merits 
of the complaint, or whether there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct.  It simply 
means that Initial Assessments Panel believes the alleged conduct, if proven, may 
amount to a failure to comply with the Code (or local protocol) and that some action 
should be taken in response to the complaint.  The Initial Assessments Panel will only 
take into account information in the agenda papers or provided by the Monitoring Officer 
in reaching its decision. 

 
Referral of a Complaint to the Monitoring Officer for Investigation 

 
10.5 Where a matter is referred to the Monitoring Officer for investigation, the Monitoring 

Officer shall determine the person to undertake that investigation and the appropriate 
manner of that investigation.  The Monitoring Officer shall have regard to all relevant 
considerations, including: the views of the Initial Assessments Panel; the seriousness of 
the allegations; the extent to which allegations are supported by any evidence; the 
Council’s financial position; and the public interest.   

 
10.6 An investigation may be undertaken by: the Monitoring Officer, in person or another 

person appointed by the Monitoring Officer, including; a Deputy Monitoring Officer; 
another appropriate officer (having regard to the nature of the allegations); a Monitoring 
Officer, or Deputy Monitoring Officer, at another local authority; or by an external 
investigator of appropriate experience and standing. 

 
10.7 Within five working days of a Initial Assessments Panel decision that a matter be 

investigated the Monitoring Officer will: 
 
 a) begin to investigate the matter personally; or 
 
 b) appoint an Investigator and instruct him/her to conduct an investigation of 

the allegation and to report their findings to the Monitoring Officer and 
subsequently to the Initial Assessments Panel. 

Page 30



 

 8
 

 
 
10.8 The Monitoring Officer may appoint another person (or other persons) to assist him/her 

or the Investigator in the conduct of his/her functions. 
 
10.9 A local investigation will be carried out having regard to the guidance provided by SFE 

and normally completed (i.e. a final report produced) within twelve weeks from the date 
the Initial Assessments Panel resolves that an allegation of a breach of the Code of 
Conduct or a local protocol should be investigated.  The timescale for investigation may 
take longer when dealing with complex complaints or where there are large numbers of 
witnesses.  In such cases the Monitoring Officer will ensure that the process is dealt with 
in a timely manner; concluded as soon as reasonably practicable; and that the 
complainant, complained about Member and Chair of the Standards Committee are kept 
informed as to progress. 

 
10.10 The Monitoring officer shall ensure that an investigation is conducted in a manner that is 

appropriate to the seriousness of the complaint and compliant with natural justice and 
human rights.  The Monitoring Officer shall have regard to all relevant considerations, 
including: the extent to which allegations are supported by any evidence; the Council’s 
financial position; and the public interest. 

 
Referral of a Complaint to the Monitoring Officer for Other Action 
 

10.11 When the Initial Assessments Panel considers a new complaint, it can decide that action 
other than an investigation should be taken and it can refer the matter to the Monitoring 
Officer to carry this out.  It may not always be in the interest of good governance to 
undertake or complete an investigation into an allegation of misconduct.  The Initial 
Assessments Panel must consult the Monitoring Officer or the Legal Advisor before 
reaching a decision to take other action. 

 
10.12 The suitability of other action is dependent on the nature of the complaint.  Certain 

complaints that a member has breached the Code of Conduct may indicate that there is 
a wider problem.  Deciding to deal pro-actively with a matter in a positive way that does 
not involve an investigation can be a good way to resolve matters that are less serious.  
This may be the simplest and most cost effective way of getting the matter resolved, 
helping the Council work more effectively and of avoiding similar complaints in the future. 

 
10.13 The Initial Assessments Panel can decide that the other action should be applied to the 

member complained against or that working practices or policies should be amended in 
light of the issues raised.  Other action may be appropriate if it appears that members 
have a poor understanding of the Code or authority procedures.  Evidence of this may 
include: 

 
(a) a number of members failing to comply with the same paragraph of the Code; 
 
(b) officers giving incorrect advice; 
 
(c) failure to adopt the Code; or 
 
(d) inadequate or incomplete protocols for use of authority resources. 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

 9
 

 
Other action may also be appropriate where a breakdown in relationships within the 
Council is apparent; evidence of this may include: 
 
(a) a pattern of allegations of disrespect, bullying or harassment; 
 
(b) factionalised groupings within the Council; 
 
(c) a series of ‘tit-for-tat’ allegations; or 
 
(d) ongoing employment issues, which may include resolved or ongoing employment 

tribunals, or grievance procedures. 
 
10.14 The Initial Assessments Panel will take a practical approach to considering other action, 

taking into account the needs of the Council.  It will be made clear to everyone involved 
in the process that the decision to refer a matter for other action is made as an 
alternative to investigation.  Where other action is agreed no conclusion or decision will 
be made on whether the member complained against failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct or local protocol. 

 
10.15 Complaints that have been referred for other action will not be referred back to the Initial 

Assessments Panel if the other action is perceived to have failed.  This would be unfair to 
the member complained against and a case may be jeopardised if it has been discussed 
as part of the mediation process.   

 
10.16 The following are some examples of alternatives to investigation: 
 

(a) arranging for the member complained against to attend a training course; 
 
(b) arranging for the member complained against and the complainant to engage in a 

process of conciliation; or 
 
(c) instituting changes to the Council’s procedures if they have given rise to the 

complaint. 
 
10.17 Within three months of the date the direction for ‘other action’ was received, the 

Monitoring Officer will submit a written report to the Initial Assessments Panel giving 
details of the action taken or proposed to comply with the direction.  If the Initial 
Assessments Panel is not satisfied with the action specified in the report, it shall give a 
further direction to the Monitoring Officer.  If the Initial Assessments Panel is satisfied 
with the action specified in the report it will give written notice to that effect to the 
complainant, member complained against. 

 
Decision to Take No Action 

 
10.18 The Initial Assessments Panel may decide that a complaint will not be investigated or 

referred for other action for one or more of a number of reasons which could include 
those listed in paragraph 4.  In addition, the Initial Assessments Panel may decide not to 
investigate the complaint because: 

 
- the complainant has not provided adequate evidence, and there is insufficient 

likelihood of adequate evidence being found, which might indicate a breach of the 
Code to justify the use of resources involved in an investigation. 

Page 32



 

 10
 

- the complaint is not serious enough to justify the use of resources involved in an 
investigation; 

- the complaint appears to be simply malicious, politically motivated or tit-for-tat;  
- the complaint has already been investigated and there is no significant new 

information; or  
- the length of time that has elapsed since the alleged conduct took place and the 

complaint was made was too long ago to merit any action being taken. 
 
 Referral of a Complaint to Standards for England (‘SFE’) 
 
10.19 Sometimes there will be issues in a case, or public interest considerations, which make it 

difficult for the Council to deal with a complaint fairly and speedily.  In these cases the 
Initial Assessments Panel may wish to refer a complaint to SFE.  The reasons for doing 
this are set out in SFE guidance.  If the Initial Assessments Panel decides to refer a 
matter to SFE it should decide which paragraphs of the Code of Conduct it believes the 
allegation refers to and the reasons why it cannot be dealt with locally. 

 
10.20 SFE may accept such cases for investigation, take no action, or refer cases back to the 

Council’s Standards Committee.  SFE will normally inform the Monitoring Officer within 
ten working days whether they will accept a case or whether they will refer it back to the 
Standards Committee, with a reason for doing so.  There is no right of appeal against the 
SFE’s decision. 

 
10.21 If SFE decides not to investigate a case referred to them, they may offer guidance or give 

a direction to the Standards Committee, which may assist them in making their decision.  
They may also refer the matter with a direction to the Monitoring Officer to deal with. 

 
10.22 Within three months of the date the direction for ‘other action’ was received by the 

Monitoring Officer, he/she will submit a written report to the Ethical Standards Officer 
(ESO) giving details of the action taken or proposed to comply with the direction.  If the 
ESO is satisfied with the action specified in the report he/she will give written notice to 
that effect to the complainant, member complained against.  If the ESO is not satisfied 
with the action specified in the report, he/she may require the Monitoring Officer to 
arrange for a statement to be published in at least one local newspaper giving: 

 
(a) details of the direction given by the ESO; 
 
(b) the ESO’s reasons for being dissatisfied; and 
 
(c) the Monitoring Officer’s response to the ESO’s reasons for being dissatisfied. 

 
10.23 In exceptional circumstance, SFE may decide to take no further action on a complaint 

referred to them by the Initial Assessments Panel.  This is likely to be where 
circumstances have changed so much that there would be little benefit arising from 
investigation or other action, or because they do not consider the complaint discloses a 
breach of the Code of Conduct. 

 
10.24 If SFE refers a complaint back to the Standards Committee, the Initial Assessments 

Panel will meet within 20 working days of receiving the referral, and decide what action 
should be taken next.  The Initial Assessments Panel will make one of the following 
decisions: 

 
(a) not to take any further action; 

Page 33



 

 11
 

 
(b) refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer for local investigation; or 
 
(c) refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer for some other form of action, 
 
As the Initial Assessments Panel initially decided that the matter was serious enough to 
be referred to Standards for England for investigation, it is likely that it will still think that it 
should be investigated.  However, if the circumstances of the complaint have changed 
since the original decision, it may be reasonable to make a different decision.  The 
complainant and the member complained against will be notified in writing of the Initial 
Assessments Panel’s decision and the reasons for that decision, normally within five 
working days of the meeting. 

 
11. Notification of Initial Assessments Panel Decision and Right of Review 
 
11.1 If the Initial Assessments Panel decides not to refer a complaint for investigation or other 

action, the Committee Services Officer will write to the complainant and the member 
complained against to explain why, normally within five working days.  The complainant 
has a right to appeal to the Review Panel about a decision by the Initial Assessments 
Panel not to refer the complaint for investigation or other action.  This must be done 
within 30 working days of receipt of the Initial Assessments Panel’s decision.  Further 
information is set out in paragraph 12 below. 

 
11.2 If the Initial Assessments Panel decides to refer the complaint for investigation or other 

action the Committee Services Officer will within five working days write to the 
complainant and the member complained against to explain why. 

 
12. Review Panel 
 
12.1 If a complainant is dissatisfied with the Initial Assessments Panel’s decision, he/she may 

appeal, in writing, to the Review Panel.  The protocol requirements applicable to the 
Initial Assessments Panel shall apply to the Review Panel. 

 
12.2 The Review Panel will normally be made up of one Independent Members of the 

Standards Committee and two Wirral Councillors.  These must be different Independent 
and elected members to those who sat on the original Initial Assessments Panel. The 
Review Panel must be chaired by an Independent Member of the Standards Committee. 

 
12.3 The Review Panel will review a decision of the Initial Assessments Panel to take no 

action.  The Review Panel must also take into account any additional relevant evidence 
submitted to it by the complainant, member complained about or anybody else (e.g. the 
Monitoring Officer).   

 
12.4 Within five working days of receiving a request for a review of the Initial Assessments 

Panel’s decision the Committee Services Officer will write to the complainant and 
member complained against to acknowledge receipt of the request for review. 

 
12.5 The Review Panel will reach one of the following decisions within twenty working days of 

the receipt of a request for a review: 
 

(a) Uphold the original decision of the Initial Assessments Panel not to refer the 
complaint for investigation or other action.  

 

Page 34



 

 12
 

 
 
(b) Overturn the decision of the Initial Assessments Panel and refer the complaint to 

the Council’s Monitoring Officer for investigation or other action. 
 

(c) Overturn the decision of the Initial Assessments Panel and refer the complaint to 
Standards for England for investigation. 

 
13. Notification of Review Panel Decision 
 
13.1 The Committee Services Officer will write to the complainant, member complained 

against and advise them of the Review Panel’s decision and reasons for their decision, 
normally within five working days of the meeting. 

 
14. Investigation Reports 
 
14.1 When an investigation has been completed, the Initial Assessments Panel will consider 

the investigation report and may ask the Investigator questions (but will not interview 
witnesses or take representations) in deciding one of the following actions: 

 
(a) it accepts the investigating officer’s findings of no failure to observe the Code of 

Conduct or local protocol; or 
 
(b) the matter should be referred for consideration at a hearing before the Standards 

Hearing Panel; or 
 
(c) the matter should be referred to the First Tier Tribunal for determination. 
 

14.2 The Initial Assessments Panel may only make a finding under paragraph 14.1(c) if it has 
decided that the action it could take against the member would be insufficient if a finding 
of failure was made and if the President or Deputy President of the First Tier Tribunal 
(Standards for England) has agreed to accept a referral. 

 
15. Standards Hearing Panel 
 
15.1 Where the Initial Assessments Panel refers an investigation report to the Standards 

Hearing Panel, the Standards Hearing Panel will hold a formal hearing into the matter. 
 
15.2 The Standards Hearing Panel will normally be made up of two independent members of 

the Standards Committee and three Wirral Councillors.  The quorum for the Panel is 
three members including at least one Independent Member of the Standards Committee. 
The Standards Hearing Panel must be chaired by an Independent Member of the 
Standards Committee.   As the Initial Assessments Panel and Review Panel make no 
findings of fact in respect of the complaint, members who sat on the Initial Assessments 
Panel or Review Panel have not automatically predetermined matters and may sit on the 
Standards Hearing Panel. 

 
15.3 The Standards Hearing Panel has the power to issue one or more sanctions including 

power to suspend or partially suspend a member for up to six months and to restrict a 
member’s access to Council buildings or resources.  The process for dealing with this is 
set out in this Protocol.  

 
 

Page 35



 

 13
 

 
16. Conflicts of Interest 
 
16.1 Members and officers shall not take part in meetings of the Initial Assessments Panel, 

Review Panel or Standards Hearing Panel where any of the following circumstances 
apply: 

 
(a) The complaint is likely to affect the well-being or financial position of that member 

or officer or the well-being or financial position of a friend, family member of 
person with whom they have a close association. 

 
(b) The member or officer is directly or indirectly involved in the case in any way. 
 
(c) A family member, friend or close associate of the member or officer is involved in 

the case. 
 
(d) The member or officer has an interest in any matter relating to the case.  For 

example, it concerns a member’s failure to declare an interest in a planning 
application in which the member or officer has an interest.  This is despite the fact 
that the outcome of any investigation or other action could not affect the decision 
reached on the application. 

 
16.2 An officer acting as legal adviser in the above panel process must not be involved in the 

investigation of that matter. 
 
17. Roles of Investigator and the Panels 
 
17.1 The function of the Investigator is to ensure, as far as possible, that all the information 

which is relevant to the allegation is identified and presented to the / Panels, to enable 
the Panels to come to an informed decision as to whether the member has failed to 
comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members or local protocol.   

 
17.2 It is essential that the Investigator at all times acts in a manner that is completely 

impartial and fair to all parties. 
 
17.3 The Panels shall act in an inquisitorial manner seeking the truth in relation to the conduct 

of the member on the balance of the information available to it. 
 
17.4 The Panels may commission further investigation/s or request additional information 

where it needs to do so in order to come to a decision. 
 
18. Confidentiality of Information gathered during an Investigation 
 
18.1 Information gathered during an investigation will be treated as confidential until it is 

reproduced in the form of a final report.  People who are involved in the investigation or 
who are interviewed will be asked to maintain confidentiality and members will be 
reminded of their obligation under paragraph 3(a) of the Code of Conduct not to disclose 
information they have received in confidence. 

 
18.2 If a draft report is issued on the outcome of the investigation it will be marked 

“confidential”, to preserve the integrity of any further investigation that may need to be 
carried out. 

 

Page 36



 

 14
 

19. Production of Documents, Information and Explanations 
 

19.1 In the course of the investigation, the Investigator (and any person authorised on his/her 
behalf) may make such enquiries of any person (and/or request any person to provide 
any document, information or explanation), as he/she thinks necessary for the purposes 
of carrying out the investigation.  

 

19.2 In the event of a member failing to assist the Investigator, the matter may be referred to 
the Ethical Standards Officer who has legal powers to compel assistance to be given 
which if not complied with, are punishable by a level 3 fine (currently £1,000). 

 
20. Interviews 
 
20.1 Timescale 
 

 The Investigator will make arrangements for interview within ten working days of being 
appointed.  If it subsequently becomes apparent that there needs to be further interviews 
(or other evidence provided) this will be dealt with as soon as reasonably practicable. 

 
20.2 Requesting attendance 
 
 In the course of the investigation the Investigator may request any person to attend and 

appear before him/her or otherwise provide advice or information for the purpose of 
paragraph 19, as he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of carrying out the 
investigation. The Investigator will request members and other persons to provide 
responses within five working days of receipt of the request. 

 
20.3 Representation 
 
 Any person who appears before the Investigator may arrange to be accompanied (at 

their own expense) by one friend/adviser provided that they are not someone who is a 
witness. 

 
20.4 Notes of interviews 
 
 Where reasonably practicable, following the interview the Investigator will produce a 

written note of the material points of the interview, provide two copies of that note to the 
person interviewed and ask them to return one copy signed as a correct record of the 
interview, with such corrections or amendments as they may feel necessary for that 
purpose. 

 
21. Refer Back to Standards for England 
 
21.1 At any stage prior to the completion of the investigation, the Investigator may (after 

consulting the Monitoring Officer, if separate) suspend his/her investigation and refer the 
matter, together with any supporting information, to Standards for England for an Ethical 
Standards Officer to consider. 

 
21.2 When a matter is referred to an Ethical Standards Officer (ESO), they are required to 

respond to the request within 21 days of receipt and may: 
 

(a) direct that the matter be referred to an ESO for him/her to undertake an 
investigation, in which case the Monitoring Officer concerned will terminate the 
investigation; or 

Page 37



 

 15
 

 
(b) direct that the Monitoring Officer concerned continue his/her investigation in 

accordance with The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 in which 
case the Monitoring Officer concerned will continue his/her investigation and may 
not make any further request under paragraph 5 of the Regulations in respect of 
that matter. 

 
22. Investigator’s Report 
 
22.1 The Investigator will decide whether it is appropriate to produce a draft report or to 

produce a final report without first producing a draft report; a draft report will only be 
produced in the case of unusually lengthy or complex investigations.  In either event, the 
Investigator may wish to confirm the accuracy of parts of the report directly with the 
parties and/or any other persons interviewed during the investigation. 

 
22.2 The draft report will be marked “confidential” and “draft”.  It will also make clear that the 

draft report does not necessarily represent the Investigator’s final findings and that a final 
report will be presented to the Initial Assessments Panel once the Investigator has 
considered any comments received on the draft report. 

 
22.3 The Investigator will then send a copy of his/her draft report to the member and the 

person making the allegation and will normally request that they send any comments on 
the draft report to him/her within ten working days. 

 
22.4 Within five working days after the expiry of that period (or such extended period as the 

Investigator may allow), the Investigator will reconsider his/her draft report in the light of 
any comments received and will produce and send to the Monitoring Officer a final 
report. 

 
23. Meetings of the Initial Assessments Panel and the Standards Hearing Panel 
 
23.1 The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 allow for the investigation report 

to be considered as exempt information.  The Regulations also allow for the member 
complained about to require that the authority does not publish a notice stating that the 
sub-committee has found that there has been no failure to comply with the Code.  In the 
event of a finding of no failure to comply with the Code, arrangements will be made to 
publish such a notice, unless the member complained about requests at the end of the 
meeting that such a notice be not published.  In view of this legal option available to the 
member complained about, the investigation report will be treated as exempt information 
in accordance with Regulation 8(6) unless and until a decision is made that it should be 
referred to a hearings sub-committee. 

 
23.2 If a decision is made by the Initial Assessments Panel that the investigation report should 

be referred to the Standards Hearing Panel, in accordance with the statutory procedures 
it will cease to be regarded as exempt information unless the Initial Assessments Panel 
resolves that the subject member’s interest in limiting publication of an improper 
allegation yet to be determined by the Standards Hearing Panel should outweigh the 
public interest in transparent decision making. 

 
23.3 Regulation 8(6) of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 allows the 

consideration of the investigation report to be considered as exempt information. 
 
 

Page 38



 

 16
 

24. Rights and Responsibilities of Members and the Investigator 
 
24.1 No member, including the member complained about, has any right to address the Initial 

Assessments Panel or Review Panel.  No member may address the Standards Hearing 
Panel other than in accordance with the procedures laid down in accordance with the 
Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 and Standards for England Guidance. 

 
24.2 The Investigator will seek to interview the member complained about and the 

complainant. 
 
24.3 Depending upon the seriousness of the allegations and the available evidence, the 

Investigator may also interview other persons named by the member complained about 
or the complainant whom the Investigator considers could reasonably further assist the 
investigation.  Neither the member complained about nor the complainant may seek to 
interview such other persons themselves. 

 
24.4 The member complained about or the complainant may supply the Investigator with any 

documents they would like the Investigator to examine as part of the investigation, or the 
contact details of people they would like the Investigator to interview. 

 
24.5 The complainant and the complained-about Member will normally be interviewed face-to-

face by the Investigator.  Other witnesses may be interviewed by telephone or invited to 
make written submissions, as the Investigator considers appropriate.  The complained-
about Member will normally be given an opportunity to comment upon all evidence 
submitted by the complainant (or others) to substantiate the complaint. 

 
24.6 It is a breach of the Code of Conduct to attempt to intimidate the Investigator or members 

of the Standards Committee, or any witness, potential witness or any other person in 
relation to the complaint.  No attempt should be made to communicate with members of 
the Standards Committee about any matter relevant to the investigation. 

 
24.7 Anyone seeking to participate in the investigation will be directed to the Monitoring Officer 

or the Investigating Officer in the first instance. 
 
 To avoid misunderstanding, any communication of this nature should be made in writing 

wherever possible. 
 
24.8 Anyone involved with the investigation will be advised that they may be compromising 

their position if they communicate with the media on matters relevant to the investigation 
whilst the investigation is ongoing and that any communication that is made should 
emanate from the Council’s communication team.  It is the responsibility of the 
Investigator to seek to discover the facts in an impartial and thorough manner in 
accordance with Standards for England Guidance.  It is the responsibility of the 
Standards Hearing Panel to determine the facts and decide whether there has been a 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. 

 
25. Processing the Investigator’s Report 
 
25.1 Within three working days from receipt of the Investigator’s report the Committee 

Services Officer will write to the complainant and the members complained about: 
 
 (a) enclosing a copy of the report; and 
 

Page 39



 

 17
 

 
 

(b) informing them of the date of the Initial Assessments Panel at which it will be 
considered. 

 
25.2 The Initial Assessments Panel will consider the report and make a finding that: 
 
 (a) it accepts the Investigator’s finding of no breach or 
 

(b) the matter should be referred to the Standards Hearing Panel or the Local 
Government Standards Tribunal. 

 
25.3 Within three days after the Initial Assessments Panel’s decision, the Committee Services 

Officer will 
 
 (a) give written notice of the decision to: 
 
  (i) the member complained about; 
  (ii) the Investigator; and 

(iii) the complainant; and 
  

(b) if the decision is to accept that no breach has been committed, arrange for a 
notice to be published in at least one newspaper circulating in the Borough of 
Wirral (unless the member concerned is found not to have committed any breach 
of the Code of Conduct and/or local protocol(s) and requests that it is not 
published) stating that the Standards Committee has found that there has not 
been a failure on the part of the member whom the finding of no failure relates to, 
to comply with the Code of Conduct for Members (and/or local protocols). 

 
25.4 If the Initial Assessments Panel has referred the matter to the Standards Hearing Panel, 

the Committee Services Officer will, within three working days, write to the member 
complained about asking them to complete the forms prescribed by SFE and return them 
to the Committee Services Officer within ten working days.  If the member does not reply, 
a reminder will be sent allowing a further five working days to reply, after which, if no 
reply, it will be assumed that the member does not dispute the findings of fact and does 
not wish to participate in the hearing. 

 
25.5 Within three working days of receipt of the completed forms, the Committee Services 

Officer will write to the Investigator asking them to complete a further form within five 
working days. 

 
26. Pre Hearing 
 
26.1 Pre-Hearing Process 
 

Within five working days of the receipt of the completed form from the Investigator by the 
Committee Services Officer, a Pre-Hearing discussion will be held between the 
Monitoring Officer (or other legal advisor to the Standards Hearing Panel if the Monitoring 
Officer is the Investigator or unable to attend) and the complainant to deal with the 
procedural issues. 

 
 
 

Page 40



 

 18
 

26.2 Pre-Hearing Process Summary 
 
 Once the Pre-Hearing discussion has taken place, the Monitoring Officer will address the 

issues raised and prepare a Pre-Hearing Process Summary setting out the following 
details: 

 
 (a) The findings of fact in the Investigator’s report that are agreed. 
 
 (b) The findings of fact in the Investigator’s report that are not agreed. 
 

(c) Whether or not the member and/or the Investigator will attend or be represented. 
 
 (d) The names of any witnesses who will be asked to give evidence. 
 
 (e) An outline of the proposed procedure for the hearing. 
 
 (f) Any other matters the Monitoring Officer considers appropriate. 
 
 The Monitoring Officer will send a copy of the Pre-Hearing Process Summary to the 

member complained against, the complainant(s) and the members of the Standards 
Hearing Panel within five working days after the conclusion of the Pre-Hearing Meeting. 

 
26.3 Should the member complained against or complainant(s) intend to raise any procedural 

issue or point of order at the meeting of the Standards Hearing Panel, then the member 
or complainant(s) must provide full written details of the same (together with any 
supporting documents or evidence to be relied upon) to the Monitoring Officer at least 
seven days prior to the Standards Hearing Panel meeting.  

 
27. Consideration of Investigator’s Report 
 
27.1 Within fifteen working days of circulation of the Pre-Hearing Process Summary, the 

Standards Hearing Panel will meet to consider the allegations.  The agenda for the 
meeting will normally be despatched at least seven working days before the date of the 
meeting.  The Monitoring Officer may disclose a copy of the Investigator’s report to the 
complainant prior to the despatch of the Standards Hearing Panel agenda (but may 
remove any confidential information from the documents).   

 
27.2 If the member complained against or complainant(s) intend to raise any procedural issue 

or point of order at the meeting of the Standards Hearing Panel under paragraph 26.3 
above, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chair, shall have the right to 
postpone the Standards Hearing Panel to another date. In such circumstances a further 
agenda shall be despatched at least seven clear working days before the date of the 
meeting. 

 
27.3 The member against whom the allegation(s) may be represented or accompanied during 

the meeting by a solicitor, counsel or, with the permission of the Standards Hearing 
Panel another person.  Note: the member must meet the cost of such representation. 

 
27.4 The Standards Hearing Panel may take legal advice from its legal advisor at any time 

during the hearing or while they are considering the outcome.  The substance of any 
legal advice given to the Standards Hearing Panel will be shared with the member and 
the Investigator if they are present.  The Standards Hearing Panel may adjourn to hear 
legal advice but this advice will then be repeated by the legal advisor in the public forum. 

Page 41



 

 19
 

 
 
27.5 At the Standards Hearing Panel, it will not normally be permitted to raise new 

disagreements over findings of fact in the final report unless there are good reasons for 
doing so (for example, new evidence becoming available).  It is therefore important that 
the member complained against raises any such issues of concern on the forms sent to 
the member by the Committee Services Officer before the hearing. 

 
28. Preliminary Procedural Issues 
 
28.1 Before the Standards Hearing Panel considers the Investigator’s report it will consider 

any procedural issues, including requests for paperwork to be withheld from the public 
and/or for any part of the meeting to be held in private.  The Standards Hearing Panel will 
then resolve any other issues or disagreements about how the hearing should continue, 
which have not been resolved during the pre-hearing process. 

 
28.2 The Standards Hearing Panel may adjourn at any time to require further information or 

investigation to be carried out (in accordance with the Regulations). 
 
29. Presentation of evidence (Stage 1) 
 
29.1 After dealing with any preliminary issues, the Standards Hearing Panel will then move to 

consider the Investigator’s report. 
 
29.2 The Investigator will be invited to summarise his/her report and make any necessary 

representations to support the relevant findings of fact in the report.  With the Standards 
Hearing Panel permission, the Investigator may call any necessary supporting witnesses 
to give evidence.  The Standards Hearing Panel may give the member complained 
against and complainant(s) an opportunity to challenge any representations and 
evidence put forward by the Investigator and his/her witnesses. 

 
29.3 The Standards Hearing Panel may then give the complainant(s) an opportunity to make 

representations to support his or her version of the facts and, with the permission of the 
Standards Hearing Panel, call any witness(es) to give evidence. The Standards Hearing 
Panel may give the member complained against the opportunity to make representations 
in relation to any representations and/or evidence presented by the complainant(s) or the 
complainant(s) witness(es). The member complained against is not entitled to cross-
examine the complainant(s) or the complainant(s) witness(es). 

 
29.4 The Standards Hearing Panel may then give the member complained against an 

opportunity to make representations to support his or her version of the facts and, with 
the permission of the Standards Hearing Panel, call any witness(es) to give evidence. 
The Standards Hearing Panel may give the complainant(s) the opportunity to make 
representations in relation to any representations and/or evidence presented by the 
member complained against or his/her witness(es). The complainant(s) is not entitled to 
cross-examine the complainant(s) or the complainant(s) witness(es). 

 
29.5 At any time, the Standards Hearing Panel may question any party or any witness and 

may allow the Investigator to challenge any evidence put forward by any party or witness. 
 
29.6 If the member complained against disagrees with any relevant fact in the Investigator’s 

report, without having given prior notice of the disagreement during the Pre-Hearing 
process, he or she must give good reasons for not mentioning it before the hearing.   

Page 42



 

 20
 

 
If the Investigator is not present, the Standards Hearing Panel will consider whether or 
not it would be in the public interest to continue in his or her absence.  After considering 
the member’s explanation for not raising the issue at an earlier stage, the Standards 
Hearing Panel will then: 

 
(a) continue with the hearing, relying on the information in the Investigator’s 

report; 
 

(b) allow the member to make representations about the issue, and invite the 
Investigator to respond and call any witnesses as necessary; or 

 
(c) postpone the hearing to arrange for appropriate witnesses to be present, or 

for the Investigator to be present if he or she is not already. 
 
29.7 The complainant(s) may be invited to make any final submissions to the Standards 

Hearing Panel. 
 
29.8 The member complained against will be given the opportunity to make final submissions 

to the Standards Hearing Panel. 
 
29.9 Following final submissions, the Standards Hearing Panel will consider all the 

representations and evidence presented and deliberate in private having regard to all 
relevant guidance and advice.. 

 
29.10 The Standards Hearing Panel may, at any time, seek clarification on any representations 

or evidence presented during the meeting. 
 
30. Did the Member fail to follow the Code of Conduct for Members (or Local 

Protocol)? (Stage 2) 
 
30.1 Following consideration and deliberation, the Chair of the Standards Hearing Panel will 

announce the Standards Hearing Panel’s findings of fact. The Standards Hearing Panel 
will also confirm whether or not, based on the facts it has found, the member complained 
against has failed to follow the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct (or local protocol). 

 
31. If the Member has not failed to follow the Code of Conduct for Members (or Local 

Protocol) 
 
31.1 If the Standards Hearing Panel decides that the member complained against has not 

failed to follow the Code of Conduct (or local protocol), the Standards Hearing Panel will 
move on to consider whether it should make any recommendations to the authority. 

 
32. If the Member has Failed to Follow the Code of Conduct (or Local Protocol)  

(Stage 3) 
 
32.1 If the Standards Hearing Panel decides that the member complained against has failed to 

follow the Code of Conduct (or local protocol), the member will be invited to provide any 
mitigation he/she would like the Standards Hearing Panel to take into account before 
determining whether: 

 
 (a) whether or not the Standards Hearing Panel should impose a sanction; and if so 
 

Page 43



 

 21
 

 
(b) what form any sanction should take in accordance with the statutory powers 

available to the Standards Hearing Panel. 
 
32.2 When deciding on a sanction, the Standards Hearing Panel will make sure that it is 

reasonable and in proportion to the member’s behaviour.  Before deciding what sanction 
to set the Standards Hearing Panel will consider the criteria on sanctions approved by 
the Standards Committee. 

 
32.3 The Standards Hearing Panel will consider whether or not to impose a penalty on the 

member complained against and, if so, what the penalty should be in private.  On their 
return, the Chair will then announce the Standards Hearing Panel’s decision. 

 
33. Recommendations to the Council 
 
33.1 After considering any verbal or written representations from the Investigator, the 

Standards Hearing Panel will consider whether or not it should make any 
recommendations to the Council, with a view to promoting high standards of conduct 
among members. 

 
34. The Written Decision 
 
34.1 The Standards Hearing Panel will announce its decision on the day and provide a short 

written decision on that day.  A full written decision prepared by the Committee Services 
Officer and approved by the Monitoring Officer and Chair of the Standards Hearing Panel 
will be published within ten working days. 

 
34.2 Following the closure of the hearing, the Committee Services Officer will prepare a formal 

written notice of the Standards Hearing Panel’s determination for approval by the 
Monitoring Officer and Chair and will arrange for the distribution and publication of that 
notice within five days (in accordance with the Regulations). 

 
34.3 The notice comprises a formal written notice which must: 
 
 (a) State that the Standards Hearing Panel has found either: 
 

(i) That the member had not failed to comply with the Code of Conduct 
or local protocol; or 

 
(ii) That the member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct or 

local protocol but that no action needs to be taken in respect of the 
failure; or 

 
(iii) That the member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct or 

local protocol and the sanction imposed. 
 
 (b) Specify the details of any such failure. 
 
 (c) Give reasons for the Standards Hearing Panel reaching that finding. 
 
 (d) Specify any sanction which the Sub-Committee has imposed on the member. 
 
 

Page 44



 

 22
 

 
(e) State that the member may apply for permission to appeal against the finding 

(where the Standards Hearing Panel has found that there had been a failure to 
comply with the Code of Conduct or local protocol) and provide the address to 
write to and relevant time limit. 

 
34.4 The formal written notice must be sent to: 
 
 (a) The member concerned. 
 
 (b) The Investigator concerned. 
 

(c) The Standards Committee (as the determination was made by the Standards 
Hearing Panel). 

 
(d) The Standards Committee of any other authority of which the member is also a 

member. 
 
 (e) The complainant. 
 

(f) One or more newspapers circulating in the area of the authority (unless the 
Standards Hearing Panel finds that there has not been a breach the member 
requests that the notice is not sent to the press). 

 
35. Failure to Comply with the Requirements of this Protocol 
 
35.1 Failure by a member to comply with the reasonable requirements of the Investigator, or 

this protocol, may result in a further complaint being made to the Monitoring Officer and 
may be referred to the Standards Committee.  This will be a breach of paragraph 20 of 
the Code of Conduct for Members.  Officers are also required to comply with the 
reasonable requirements of the Investigator and this Protocol.  Any failure to do so may 
result in disciplinary action being taken against the individual concerned. 

 
36. Modification of Procedure 
 
36.1 The Chair of the Standards Committee, on the advice of the Monitoring Officer or Legal 

Advisor, after consulting the complained about Member and complainant, may vary the 
application of the procedure and practice detailed in this Protocol in any particular 
instance where the Chair is satisfied that such a variation is necessary in the interests of 
fairness; any such variation will be recorded in writing and signed by the Chair, with 
reasons given for the variation, and filed on the case file. 

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

29 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: MYSTERY SHOPPING  

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE  

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER: 

COUNCILLOR JEAN STAPLETON 

KEY DECISION? NO. 
  
  
1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

1.1 The Standards Committee on 4 July 2011 (minute 3) asked for details of the 
mystery shopper work undertaken to assess the quality of service at the Call 
Centre, Libraries and One Stop Shops. This report details the work undertaken 
and the results. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. That Members note the report. 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 To allow Members to be aware of the work and results of the mystery shopper 
exercise that was undertaken to assess service quality and identify 
improvements.  

 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 All services need to know how they are seen by users and this can be achieved 

in a number of ways from asking users directly to having a review of the 
services in place from the perspective of the service user. This is sometimes 
undertaken as mystery shopping. This involves a person not known to the 
service using the service and assessing the experience of all aspects of the 
service against pre set criteria. These will reflect the quality and experience of 
the service user.  

 
4.2 Mystery Shopping provides a key element of the programme for ongoing 

improvement. The first Mystery Shopping exercise was undertaken from 
December 2010 to February 2011. The areas assessed were Libraries, One 
Stop Shops and the Call Centre. 

 
4.3 Services were assessed on over 60 criteria including quality of service 

provided, response times and internal and external building maintenance. The 
assessment takes place on general information not case specific as this is 
assessed via direct public feedback such as surveys and complaints. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 47



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

4.4 The Call Centre and One Stop Shop services were generally rated as ‘Good’ 
or ‘Excellent’.  Staff was viewed as friendly and polite, and willing to go the 
extra step to provide great service. Where knowledge of specific areas was 
lacking it was found that there was generally good use of the Council website 
to provide information. Where the posting out of documentation was 
requested, all relevant documents were received within five working days, and 
adequate information explaining how to complete them was supplied.  

 
4.5 The Library service was rated as either ‘Good’ or ‘Average’. While the 

resources offered by each Library in terms of book stock and IT vary greatly 
depending on the size of the Library, overall staff knowledge of services 
requires some development. 

 
4.6 A number of areas for staff development included: 

• More signposting of the Council website as the first port of call for 
information enquiries and for downloading documents. 

• Timescales need to be provided wherever possible and explanations of 
‘what happens next’. 

• Further promotion of other services that might remove the need for 
customers to repeat visit. 

 
4.7. Key environmental concerns included: 

• The external condition of Library buildings was often poor, with a lack of 
street signage. 

• Quiet study areas could often be small and in some cases untidy. 
• Leaflet racks were often untidy. 
• Accessibility was poor in places, with the smaller Libraries in particular, 

not offering easy access for disabled users. 

4.8. The issues and concerns detailed above now form part of the customer 
service development work over the coming year.  
 

4.9. While this was the first exercise to include Libraries it was the second for the 
One Stop Shops and it built on the lessons learnt in the original exercise. The 
One Stop Shops also take part in the periodic Wirral Partnership Homes 
(WPH) mystery shopping work and are assessed in the role as the WPH 
public contact points. The most recent assessment of interaction with the 
customer was given a satisfaction rating of 96.3%.  
 

4.10. The work undertaken has been considered successful and we now plan a 
rolling exercise of mystery shopping across sections which will focus on the 
customer care standards.  
 

Page 48



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
5.1 By not using this type of quality check we could lose an important opportunity 

to improve service delivery and the quality of public contact.  
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 Use of commercial organisations was considered but they are costly. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 None was undertaken.  
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

8.1 None arising from this report. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is not required specifically as part of 

this report although one has been developed for the Customer Access 
Strategy which informs the approach taken for customer feedback. 

 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

 
12.1 None. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 None. 
 
 
FNCE/192/11 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Malcolm Flanagan  

Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services  
     Telephone: 666 3260 

Email:  Malcolmflanagan@wirral.gov.uk  

Page 49



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

APPENDICES 

None. 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
 Council Meeting Date 
Standards Committee 4 July 2011 
  
 

Page 50



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

29 SEPTEMBER 2011 

SUBJECT: LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN – 

ANNUAL LETTER AND CURRENT 

PERFORMANCE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE  

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER: 

COUNCILLOR JEAN STAPLETON 

KEY DECISION? NO 
  
  
1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

1.1 The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) produces an annual letter on the 
performance of each local authority. It sets out the number of complaints made 
to the LGO about the Authority, the outcomes, how they have been dealt with 
and response times. This report sets out the contents of the 2010 -11 letter and 
the current performance in this financial year on response times. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. That Committee notes the report. 
  
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 To ensure performance continues to be monitored.  
 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The LGO annual letter for Wirral was published in June 2011and a copy is 

attached in Appendix 1 of this report. It is also available for public scrutiny on 
the Council website. 

 
4.2 The statistics provided by the LGO include the number of enquiries and 

complaints received by the LGO Advice Team who operate a triage  service to 
initially assess contacts as suitable for consideration (primarily to confirm the 
Council has had the opportunity to fully consider the complaint) before issuing 
advice or referring onto the Investigative Team.  These contacts are broken 
down into LGO defined service areas, which do not align with the Council 
departmental structure. 

 
4.3 The letter also confirms any decisions made by the Investigative Team in the 

reporting period, which may affect complaints originally received outside of the 
current reporting period and so the number of complaints received/decisions 
made may not correspond exactly. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 51



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

 
4.4 Further analysis displays the average time taken to respond to written enquiries 

and offers comparison with average responses by other types of authority 
within the LGO’s remit. Average days are measured in calendar days as 
opposed to working days. 

 
4.5 To provide local context, the statistics recorded through the Customer 

Relationship Management (CRM) system are also offered for the same 
reporting period in this report, with some additional analysis evaluating 
performance between departments. 

 
4.6 Comparative data is also provided in this report summarising Wirral 

performance against other Merseyside local authorities i.e. Halton, Knowsley, 
Liverpool, St Helens and Sefton. 

 
4.7 In previous years the LGO letter contained summaries of specific complaint 

outcomes and highlighted any particular investigations which raised concerns 
in quality of service provision or the handling of complaints. This reporting 
element does not feature in the letter format this year. 

 
COUNCIL PERFORMANCE 

 
Response times to first enquiries 

 
4.8. The Council is recorded by the LGO as responding to written (or first) enquiries 

in an average of 20.2 days against a target of 28 days. This compares to an 
average of 26.8 days reported for the 2009/2010 reporting year.   

 
4.9. The LGO reports that 64% of other metropolitan authorities were able to 

respond to first enquiries within 28 days or less, compared to 70% for 
2009/2010. 

 
4.10. It can be seen that Wirral has improved response rates by 6.6 days from the 

previous year while the general trend among other metropolitan authorities was 
one of falling performance. 

 
Enquiries and complaints received by the Advice/Investigative Teams 

 
4.11. The LGO reported that the Advice Team received 24 premature complaints (i.e. 

that the Council had not had sufficient time to consider through the 
corporate/statutory complaint process) and 17 contacts that advice only was 
given. There were a total of 8 cases resubmitted to the Investigative Team 
(previous premature complaints that had since been through the Council 
complaint process) and 30 new cases forwarded directly. 

Page 52



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

 
4.12.A breakdown across the LGO defined service areas is offered in the table 

below: 

  
  
 
 
4.13 Decisions made in the reporting period do not necessarily compare to 

complaints received by the Investigative Team.  
 
4.14 The LGO reported that the following decisions (34 in total) were made in 

2010/2011: 
 

• two local settlements i.e. decisions by letter discontinuing the 
investigation because action had been agreed by the Council and 
accepted by the LGO as a satisfactory outcome for the complainant 

• eight cases where no maladministration was found i.e. decisions by letter 
discontinuing an investigation because the LGO found no, or insufficient, 
evidence of maladministration 

• 17 cases where the LGO used discretion i.e. decisions by letter 
discontinuing an investigation in which the LGO has exercised general 
discretion not to pursue the complaint, usually due to no or insufficient 
injustice to warrant pursuing the matter further 

• seven cases where the LGO decided the matter was outside its 
jurisdiction  

 
LGO contacts recorded in CRM 

 
4.15 The LGO service split does not necessarily align directly with the Wirral 

departmental structure and so supplementary analysis is offered from the CRM 
system. 

Page 53



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

 
4.16 The Council has a designated coordinator within the Finance Department to 

receive any contacts received from the LGO, log in CRM, monitor progress in 
support of the departmental customer feedback coordinator and liaise with the 
LGO/department/Legal Services as necessary.  Contacts received are entered 
in CRM as requests for information (i.e. first informal contact from the LGO 
asking for background information); follow-up enquiries (i.e. relating to a 
previous contact and requiring further clarification) and new investigations (i.e. 
LGO confirms formal investigation proceedings started). 

 
4.17 Analysis taken from the CRM across all LGO contacts (not restricted to first 

enquiries as highlighted in the annual letter) is as follows: 
 
• Across all departments: 

o 63 contacts received relating to 53 individual LGO cases  
o Average of 16 days across all departments to respond to contacts 
o Average of 14 days to respond to requests for information (51 in total) 
o Average of 26 days to respond to follow-up enquiries (10 in total) 
o Average of 23 days to respond to new investigations (2 in total) 

• By department: 
o Corporate Services took an average of 14 days to respond to their 

LGO contacts (5 in total) with one request for information concerning 
corporate policy taking 28 days to respond  

o CYPD contacts (14 in total) ranged over Anti-social behaviour team 
(3); Children’s social care (4) and Schools (7) and included 5 follow-up 
enquiries 

o CYPD took an average of 9 days to respond to Schools related 
contacts (target of 14 days) 

o CYPD took an average of 26 days to respond to non-school related 
contacts though this included a single request for information which 
took 125 days to respond 

o DASS contacts all concerned Care services (22) apart from a single 
enquiry regarding Finance and Performance and included 5 follow-up 
enquiries 

o Care services took an average of 19 days to respond with the 4 
contacts which took over 28 days to respond having an average of 50 
days taken  

o The single DASS Finance and Performance contact took 95 days to 
respond 

o The Finance Department received 3 contacts relating to Revenues and 
a single contact for the Miscellaneous Income section with an average 
of 8 days taken to resolve these contacts 

o LHRAM had 2 contacts for Environmental Health and a single contact 
for Licensing, taking an average of 15 days to respond 

o One of the Environmental Health contacts was classified as a new 
(formal) investigation and took 28 days to respond 

o Technical Services had 14 contacts, taking an average of 7 days to 
respond with the Planning service being the most popular service area 
(5 contacts received) 

Page 54



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

o Of the 14 contacts received, a new investigation was instigated for the 
Sports and Recreation service and took 17 days to respond 

 
 Comparison with other Merseyside Authorities 
 
4.18. The LGO publicly releases figures for all local authorities and this provides 

the opportunity to compare performance with other Merseyside councils in 
2010/11: 

 

  
Contacts 
received 

First Enquiries Decisions reached 

  
Advi
ce 
Team 

Investigati
ve Team 

Numb
er 
receiv
ed 

Avera
ge 
calend
ar 
days 
to 
respon
d 

Local 
Settleme
nt (no 
report) 

No 
Maladm
in (no 
report) 

LGO's 
discreti
on (no 
report) 

Outside 
jurisdictio
n 

Halton 15 14 6 29.8 4 5 4 2 
Knowsl
ey 

18 12 7 21.3 3 5 0 5 

Liverpo
ol 

97 74 32 16.8 17 22 19 13 

Sefton 30 24 8 27.9 7 11 3 3 
St 
Helens 

22 18 5 20.8 2 7 2 3 

Wirral 41 38 9 20.2 2 8 17 7 

 
4.19 As can be seen from the table, Wirral is second only to Liverpool Council when 

measured in the average days taken to respond to first enquiries. This 
compares to coming ‘last’ in the same comparator table for 2009/2010. 

 
Current performance measured through CRM 

 
4.20 For the period 1April 2011 – 11 September 2011 the following performance is 

reported through CRM: 
 

•  35 contacts from the LGO with 31 of these contacts responded to in an 
average of 13 days* and 4 currently open 

•  30 requests for information and 5 follow-up enquiries 
•  Main service areas experiencing contact are (DASS) Care services (10); 

(CYPD) Schools (8) and (Finance) Revenues (4) 
•  Those services responding outside of the standard target of 28 days were: 

o (Corporate Services) Planning – single contact taking 31 day to 
respond 

o (Finance) Revenues – single contact taking 31 days to respond 
o (DASS) Care Services – single contact taking 39 days to respond 

Page 55



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

o (LHRAM) Legal and Member Services – single contact taking 43 days 
to respond 

4.21 The CRM monitors all LGO contacts received to ensure consistent performance 
rather than isolating LGO defined first enquiries which are highlighted in the 
annual review letter 

Page 56



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

 
FOCUS FOR 2011/2012 

 
4.22 Clearly the emphasis will be to maintain the improving performance reported in 

2010/2011, in relation to the statistics provided by the LGO, analysis from the 
CRM system and in comparison with other Merseyside authorities. 

 
4.23 LGO contacts are handled as part of the wider corporate approach to customer 

feedback (i.e. complaints, councillor/MP enquiries, suggestions and 
compliments), recognising that such interactions provide an opportunity to ‘put 
things right and learn from it’. Being able to evidence learning outcomes for the 
organisation from LGO contacts and wider feedback received will be a priority 
during 2011/2012. 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
5.1 The ability to maintain the level of improving performance reported through 

2010/2011 into 2011/2012 with the reduced staffing resource (post-Early 
Voluntary Retirement / Voluntary Severance schemes) and wider budgetary 
restraint impacting on service provision/potential level of complaint. 

 
5.2 Ensuring a corporate commitment to identifying organisational learning through 

the recognition that customer contacts should not be dealt with in isolation but 
instead should be used in the context of informing future levels of service 
performance. 

 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1 None arising directly from this report. 
  
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS 
 
9.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) - Is an EIA required?  No. 

Page 57



___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 None. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1  None. 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Malcolm Flanagan  
      Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services  
     Telephone: 666 3260 
      Email:  Malcolmflanagan@wirral.gov.uk  

FNCE/220/11 

 

APPENDICES 

LGO Annual Letter and Report 2010/2011.  
 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
 Council Meeting Date 
  
Standards Committee (Minute 12) 
 
Standards Committee (Minute 13) 
 
Standards Committee (Minute 13) 
 

29 September 2010 
 
29 September 2009 
 
30 September 2008 

  
 
 

Page 58



 

Beverley House 
17 Shipton Road 
York 
YO30 5FZ 

T: 01904 380200 
F: 01904 380269 
W: www.lgo.org.uk 
 
Advice Team: 0300 061 0614 

Anne Seex 
Local Government Ombudsman 
Michael King 
Deputy Ombudsman 

 

LG
O

 0
8 

(0
3/

09
) 

 
 
24 June 2011 
 
 
Mr J Wilkie 
Chief Executive 
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Brighton Street 
WALLASEY 
Merseyside       
CH44 8ED 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Wilkie 
 
Annual Review Letter 
 
I am writing with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to me about your 
authority for the year ending 31 March 2011. I hope the information set out in the enclosed tables 
will be useful to you. 
 
The statistics include the number of enquiries and complaints received by our Advice Team, the 
number that the Advice Team forwarded to my office and decisions made on complaints about 
your council. Not all complaints are decided in the same year that they are received. This means 
that the number of complaints received and the number decided will be different.  
 
The statistics also show the time taken by your authority to respond to written enquiries and the 
average response times by type of authority.  
 
Communicating decisions 
 
We want our work to be transparent and our decisions to be clear and comprehensible. During the 
past year we changed the way we communicate our decisions and reasons. We now provide a 
stand-alone statement of reasons for every decision we make to both the citizen who has 
complained and to the council. These statements replace our former practice of communicating 
decisions by letter to citizens that are copied to councils. We hope this change has been beneficial 
and welcome comments on this or any other aspect of our work. 
 
In April 2011 we introduced a new IT system for case management and revised the brief 
descriptions of our decisions. My next annual letter will use the different decision descriptions that 
are intended to give a more precise representation of complaint outcomes and also add further 
transparency to our work. 
 

Page 59



 
 
Page 2 
Mr J Wilkie 
 
 

 

Extended powers 
 
During 2010/11 our powers were extended to deal with complaints in two significant areas. 
 
In October 2010 all complaints about injustice connected to adult social care services came under 
our jurisdiction. The greater use of direct payments and personalised budgets mean that it is 
particularly important for us to be able to deal with such complaints irrespective of whether a 
council has arranged the care. The increasing number of people who arrange and pay for their own 
social care now have the right to an independent and impartial examination of any complaints and 
concerns they may have about their care provider. 
In the six months to April 2011 we received 75 complaints under our new adult social care powers. 
Between 2009/10 and 2010/11 complaints about care arranged or funded by councils doubled from 
657 to 1,351.  
 
The Apprenticeships, Skills, Children & Learning Act 2009 introduced powers for us to deal with 
complaints about schools by pupils or their parents. This was to be introduced in phases and 
currently applies in 14 council areas. By the end of 2010/11 we had received 169 complaints about 
schools in those areas and 183 about schools in other areas where we had no power to 
investigate. The Education Bill currently before Parliament proposes to rescind our new jurisdiction 
from July 2012.  
 
Our new powers coincided with the introduction of Treasury controls on expenditure by 
government departments and sponsored bodies designed to reduce the public spending deficit. 
This has constrained our ability to inform care service users, pupils and their parents of their new 
rights.  
 
Assisting councils to improve 
 
For many years we have made our experience and expertise available to councils by offering 
training in complaint handling. We regard supporting good complaint handling in councils as an 
important part of our work. During 2010/11 we surveyed a number of councils that had taken up 
the training and some that had not. Responses from councils where we had provided training were 
encouraging: 
 

• 90% said it had helped them to improve their complaint handling 
• 68% gave examples of how the knowledge and skills gained from the training had been 

applied in practice 
• 55% said that complaints were resolved at an earlier stage than previously 
• almost 50% said that citizens who complained were more satisfied. 

 
These findings will inform how we develop and provide training in the future. For example, the 
survey identified that councils are interested in short complaint handling modules and  
e-learning.  
 
Details of training opportunities are on our web site at www.lgo.org.uk/training-councils/ 
 
More details of our work over the year will be included in the 2010/11 Annual Report. This will be 
published on our website at the same time as the annual review letters for all councils (14 July).  
 

Page 60



 
 
Page 3 
Mr J Wilkie 
 
 

 

If it would be helpful to your Council I should be pleased to arrange for me or a senior manager to 
meet and explain our work in greater detail. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Anne Seex 
Local Government Ombudsman 
 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$%&$'()"*+(,&*-."*(&/&0+**$%&123 &4"*&()-&.-*+"5&-65+67&/&89:;8:<;99

!"#$%&#'()#$*+%"#,-'*"+$"+$*+')#.#)'-'*"+$"%$/'-'*/'*0/$01*02$"+$'(*/$1*+2$'"$3"$'"$444513"5"#35&267"&+0*1/8)#%"#,-+0)

!=>&?5@+#-&A-$B

!"#$%&'()*&
+*),-.*/

0*1*2-%/&3&
4(5

'6)76)(%*&3&
8%9*)&+*),-.*/

:"#.(%-61&3&
'9-$")*1/&
+*),-.*/

:1,-)61;*1%($&
+*),-.*/&3&
<#=$-.&
<)6%*.%-61&3&
>*?#$(%-61

@-?9A(B/&3&
4)(1/76)%

@6#/-1? 8%9*) <$(11-1?&3&
C*,*$67;*1%

46%($

D6);($E-126);($&7)*;(%#)*&
.6;7$(-1%/

! " " ! " ! # $ % #!

!",-.*&?-,*1 " ! % & $ $ $ % # %'

D6)A()"*"&-1&-1,*/%-?(%-,*&
%*(;&F)*/#=;-%%*"&

% % % % $ $ $ $ ! (

D6)A()"*"&%6&-1,*/%-?(%-,*&
%*(;&F1*AG

%% # $ ' ) " $ $ # "$

46%($ %* %$ ) %( ( ' # % * '*

C6D'+*+-E&$65&
#"B.%$+6(E&*-#-+@-5

F6@-E(+7$(+@-&A-$B

9"'-1:&'/*;)$
<&#*/;*0'*"+

=)."#'/>$
,-1-;,*+*/'#-'*"+$
-+;$*+<&/'*0)

G-#+E+"6E ?"0-1$
/)''1),)+'/$
@+"$#)."#'A

=)."#'/>$
B-1-;,*+*/'#-'*"+$

+"$*+<&/'*0)

=)."#'/>$+"$
B-1-;,*+*/'#-'*"+

C"$
B-1-;,*+*/'#-'*"+$

@+"$#)."#'A

:,D&;/,-+E/$
;*/0#)'*"+$@+"$

#)."#'A

&; &H &9I &I &8J&;&<&;
#$%$+,+#$%%

F*##-1$BG7

P
age 63



H;&1'$/"0*-1$0-#)$;)0*/*"+/$,-;)$%#",$I$:0'$JKIKK

:&'$"%$<&#*/;*0'*"+ 9"'-1

HIJI&K&HIJJ # #

L9()/)$;)0*/*"+/$-#)$+"'$*+01&;);$*+$'()$,-*+$;)0*/*"+/$'-D1)$-D"M)5$9()N$&/)$'()$+)4$;)0*/*"+$#)-/"+/$%#",$I6IK6IK5$

&
&&&&&&&&L*"@+E+"6$%&#"B.$*$(+@-&*-E."6E-&(+B-E&;9:;J:<;9;&("&89:;8:<;99&&
+

A,.-E&"4&$'()"*+(,& MN&<H&5$,E&
O&

<P&/&8Q&5$,E&
O&

R&N&8S&5$,E&
O&

O*/'#*0'$0"&+0* 1/$$ PQ$ JR$ IJ$
S+*'-#N$-&'("#* '*)/$$ QT$ JU$ IR$
B)'#"."1* '-+$-&'("#*'*)/$$ PV$ IT$ IW$
7"&+'N$0"&+0*1/$$ PP$ IW$ IW$
?"+;"+$D"#"&3(/$ $ PV$ RK$ P$
C-'*"+-1$.-#2/$ -&'("#*' *)/$$ WQ$ JQ$ K$

&

?@7&6"&"4&5$,E&&&&
("&*-E."65

T"&"4&4+*E(
&C6D'+*+-E

U+*E(&-6D'+*+-EV-E."6E-&(+B-E

;9:;J:<;9;&:&89:;8:<;99 &P &<;W<

<;;P&:&<;9; &<P &<SWH

<;;H&:&<;;P &9;; &9JW8

F*##-1$BG7

P
age 64


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Summary of Complaints Made Under Members' Code of Conduct
	Complaints about Members Summary Appendix 1
	Complaints Report Appendix 2 - Protocol

	4 Mystery Shopping
	5 Local Government Ombudsman - Annual Letter and Current Performance
	Local Government Ombudsman Appendix A
	Local Government Ombudsman Appendix B


